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2016/17 HIGHLIGHTS

Scottish Futures Trust SCOTTISH

Highlights of 2016/17 TRUST

ol

Managing economic investment

We are managing economic investment
programmes that are allowing the public
sector to invest £200m which is securing
more than £2bn of investment from

the private sector.

03

Leading on hub programme

02

Investment in affordable-rent homes

We have secured £400m of additional
investment to allow 2,700 affordable-rent
homes to be built.

We are leading on the hub programme
that has developed and has under

construction over £1bn of community-based
projects which are supporting 9,000 jobs.

04

Significant LED street light savings

QOur LED street lighting spend-to-save
programme is on track to secure £1.2bn of
energy and maintenance savings.

05

Award recognition

Community projects, delivered
through our hub programme received
15 design awards.

06

Public sector savings of over £200m

Through our New Ways of Working programme,
Scotland's public sector has saved over £200m
by using their buildings more effectively.

Q7

4G capability innovation

We developed a pathfinder to bring
4G to the remote island of Coll, which
as well as supporting the local
community and local businesses,
will also be used by the Home Office
for its Emergency Services Network

08

On track to hit five-year target

With this year's benefits and savings
estimated at £138m, we remain on track to
secure our five-year corporate target of
£500-£750m of benefits and savings.
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As the recently appointed Chairman of the Scottish Futures Trust (SFT),itismymeasuo pr esent S
annual report and accounts for the year ending 31 March 2017.

As an infrastructure delivery company owned by Scottish Government, SFT works with many different partners
across the public and private sectors to help them plan riitinvestment, deliver major infrastructure
programmes, deploy innovative financing approaches to build new infrastructure, as well as improve the
management of existing buildings.

Improving the planning and delivery of infrastructure is vital in deiingeand achieving sustainable economic
growth across Scotland. The impact on the economy can be felt either directly in creating jobs now during
construction, or indirectly from unlocking investment by the private sector to create |eteger employment

in the production and services sector.

We have also been very pleased to see schools, health and social care centres and colleges, procured through
our programmes, winning many awards for their design. Good design leaves a lasting legacy, not just in the
visual impact within communities, but also by the functional design helping support the improvement in the
delivery of public services.

Some examples of this work in action and the progress we have made are highlighted below:

T I'n the SFT hoeldfor&e Butule aragdaimme, tBecB@chool opened and collectively
30,000 pupils are now benefitting from new and inspiring learning environments;

1 Across the hub programme, over 100 commufiised buildings are now open and a further 60,
valued at @er £1.1bn, are under construction supporting over 9,000 jobs;

9 During 2016/17 our surplus property team generated over £50m from the sale of surplus public
properties which will be invested back to the public sector;

1 Our housing team has created and i@ied innovative housing programmes to deliver 2,700 -mid
market rent homes totalling £400m of additional investment, with more than half of them already
built and occupied;

T Our Growth Accelerator programme has unlocked £850m of additional economicrimemsinto the
heart of Edinburgh as construction gets underway on one of the most significantecitse
regeneration projects to be seen anywhere in the UK;

1 Two additional Tax Incremental Financing projects have been given the green light to praaeeil th
deliver substantial economic benefits and support hundreds of jobs in Scotland;

T Our asset management team has a iO@hretwoughcthe mdrea nd’ s
efficient use of its properties, including a reduction in the amoun€Cotinciloffice space it uses by
30% over the past five yeamsnd

1 Our Street Ighting programme has enabled28 of Scotl and’s 900, 000 str
energyefficient LEDs, helping councils save £12m a year, saving 71,000 tonnesaoh@@y.

The benefits of the work we do with partners is measured in a number of ways; one is financial and another is
the wider benefit across society.
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Across our work programmes, significant financial benefits have beeerafed. As shown opage 18 in
201617 we estimate the value of benefits to be £138m and remain on course to achieve oyedive
corporate plan target of securing £50018750m of savings and benefits between 2014 and 2019.

Our work also makes a positi impact on society as it helps protect jobs and create employment and training
opportunities. Our £850m Growth Accelerator initiative in Edinburgh is estimated to support 3,000 long term
jobs. Other benefits flow through our low carbon work streeamwhere e t eam’ s wor k i s ma
contribution to reach Scotland’s carbon reduction
possible. This work is very much at the heart of our overall drive and purpose.

Along with the Board oBFT, | would like to thank Sir Angus Grossart for his time as Chai@inakngus was
instrumental in the creation of SFT and served as its inaugural chairman for eight years up to December 2016
Undoubtedly his commercial expertise and extensive busikeg#/ledge has helped forge SFT to become the
successful organisation it is today.

Finally, | and my fellow Board members are very much looking forward to continuing to work with the excellent

SFT team, to help drive efficient and effective use of itfuasure in Scotland, and through that supporting
long term economic growth.

LT

lan Russell
Chairman

Date:21 August 2017
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OUR STRATEGY

SFT's Strategy is to develop opportunities to im
investment inScotland. In doing so, we focus upon quality design to enable and facilitate service delivery;
innovative financing to unlock and accelerate investmanmid, dissemination of best practice. Our approach

is detailed within our 20149 Corporate Plan and anal Business Plans.

The @mpany's objectives for each year are established in detail in its publisisdess [an.During 2016/17
objectives were set against kg@grformance indicators across eleveaparate areas of the business, with
progress reportd to the Board at each Board meetinbhe objectives for 2016/17 and our performance
against them can be found on the SFT website.

The SFT Group is structured with an operating company, SFT, which employs the staff and undertakes the day
to-day businessrad a wholly owned subsidiary SFTi. SFTi holds investments in hub companies, investments in
infrastructure projects delivered by hub companies and membersh®® ¢fint venture LLPs delivering homes
through the National Housing Trust. This helps separatestment activity from theperational aspects of

the parentcompany.

This document comprises the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Group (being SFTiand
together) and the parenCompany, SFT. As is required by law, a separate AnnpaltRend Financial
St atements are prepared for SFTi which can be vie

Pages9- 21 comprise the Strategic Report on the activitié®y achievementand finances of the Group
including enhanced requirements to detail operational perfamoe and risks. Page?3-33 detail our
Corporate Governance arrangementsaned mpr i se t he Directors’ Report i
Director s’ ;Re Rgportnos Cdrporate @arnarce;the Statement a Internal Control, the

Report onDirectors Remuneration and the Report of the Audit Committdé&e Financials are reported on
page35 — 78 and includethe role of our external auditor along withdpinion on the financial statements

and corporate governance statemerthe key financihstatements of the Group and the Compaayd the

detailed notes accompanying the Financial Statements to explain the numbers in more detail and meet the
requirements of applicable International Financial Reporting Standards.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

The drectors present their Annual Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31
March 2017 of the Scottish Futures Trust Limited Group (incorporating the whaligcbsubsidiary Scottish
Futures Trust I nvestments Limited “SFTi” and the

The drectors consider the Annual Report and Financial Statements taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced and
understandable and provel t he i nf or mati on necessary to assess
business model and strategy.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
As an arm's | ength company owned by Scottish Gove:

'to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of infrastruetutvestment and use in Scotland by working
collaboratively with public bodies and industry, leading to better value for money and ultimately improved
public services.'

In working towards that aim, employing and developing the right team of people ig@atr8ince becoming
fully operational in 2009, SFT has built asti@ng professional team who have the specific skills and expertise
to deliver, support and improve public sector infrastructure investment, right across Scotland.

Their work is underpinnedby our four values, of being Bold, Collaborative, Dynamic and Ambitious. In
following these guiding principles, our teams contribute significantly to creating awemting buildings
delivered through innovative programmes which secures additional invergtrand supports economic
growth.

These teams lead and support wide and varied programmes of work which haveghmgred under six
headings SFT home, SFT invest, SFT build, SFT connect, SFT green and -S4 plecéollowing provides
a review of he significant progress being made.

BUSINESS REVIEW & KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

SFT home

Increasing the supply and improving the quality of housing across Scotland remains a key priority for SFT, and
our housing team has been very successful in devedppind delivering innovative approaches to increase the
supply of affordable housing.

Working with many of Scotland’s <councils along w
construction of 2,700 energgfficient, quality, affordableent homes;homes that would not have been built
without SFT's involvement . Ma nspallorfmediumsizdhousebuildenso me s

and represent nearly £400m of additional investment in the affordable housing sector.

SFT' s wor k @éiaBugesdanmamdrior tithagket rent properties. Over the past 12 months our
team has been working with the City of Edinburgh Council on a new initiative to deliver at least 1,500 more
new homes for miemarket and market rent, whiclsubject to final apprealswill see a further investment of
£245m made across Edinburgh.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
BusinesfReview & Key Performance Indicator€g@ntinued

SFT invest
Our investment team continues to explore the best funding and financing solutions inipof®ur overall
objective of securing the best value for infrastructure investment in Scotland.

A hugely significant programme our team has developed and leads on is the Growth Accelerator approach.
Within a relatively short space of time, this prognae has secured massive levels of inward investment with
construction well underway in two locations.

In Edinburgh, the Growth Accelerator is unlocking £850m of additional economic investment as demolition of
the St James Centre has begun to make way rieraf the most significant citgentre regeneration projects
to be seen anywhere in the UK.

Edinburgh St. James Case Study

After securing planning permission from City of Edinburgh Council in late 2016, TH Real Estate is investing
£850m into the area whkh, when complete, will quickly become a wallass destination, boasting a luxury
five-star hotel, 150 exclusive apartments, 30 restaurants, 850,000 sq ft oflfis retail space aha deluxe
multi-screen cinema

In delivering the new Edinburgh Sties, all stakeholders are committed to the establishment of a new
Training Academy which will develop employment and training opportunities in the retail, leisure and catering
industries, targeting some of t hthatthisrpgdgenemtion pgojecho s t
will generate up to 3,000 permanent new jobs for many years to come.

During 2016, Dundee City Council was granted its own Growth Accelerator which has secured £175m of
additional economic investment from the private sectont o t he city’'s Waterfront
first phase of the Waterfront development will be completed sooner and is where the gravity defying and
architecturally breatkhtaking V&A museum is being built. When open in 2018, it is anticipatedhbaV&A

will attract hundreds of thousands of new visitors to Dundee, helping as part of the overall waterfront
development to secure additional, loigrm economic benefit to the city and wider areas.

In a similar vein, our Tax Incremental Financing)(€conomic investment programme has continued to
expand. In addition to the four existing TIF projects underway in Fife, Glasgow, Falkirk and Argyll & Bute, two
additional projects in North Ayrshire and again in Fife were unveiled during 2016/17.

TheTF and Growth Accelerator programmes will enabl e
to attract more than £2bn of investment from the private sector.

Across our welestablished No#Profit Distributing (NPD) revenue funded programme manyjguts are
reaching completion. During 2016/17 the City of Glasgow College City Campus opened as did the Kilmarnock
Campus, part of Ayrshire College. They join the two other NPD funded college buildings already open,
Inverness College and the Riverside fasin Glasgow, again part of the City of Glasgow College.

10
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STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
BusinesfReview & Key Performance Indicator€g@ntinued

Outstanding design has been at the core of these college buildings. During the past year, the Riverzside Cam
received numerous architecture and design awards, the most notable being the Royal Incorporation of
Architects in Scotland (RIAS) award.
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The Riverside Campus was also one of only seven projects (the only one in Scotland) to be shortlisted for the
2016 Royal Institute of British Architects Bty Award (RIBA), narrowly missing out to the winner. It is widely
recognised that shortlisting is in itself a considerable honour with this being only the sixth building in Scotland
nominated since the RIBA Stirling Prize started 21 years ago.

Andcont nui ng Gl asgow Coll ege’s haul of design awards
and has similarly been shortlisted for the 2017 RIBA Stirling award, this year one of only six buildings across
the UK to do so.

RIBA President, Jane Duyica Kl & &l AR 2F GKS aK2NIfAadSR LINR2SO
building that has made the biggest contribution to the evolution of architecture in a given year.

G¢KAA @SINNna aK2NIfAadSR aO0KSY Saénsidéréd2aad c&efulySdetdiled? v |
buildings that have made every single penny count. Commissioned at the end of the recession, they are ar
accolade to a creative profession at the top of its game.
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Now that all colleges are operational, they are providing more than 50,000 students with-elaskllearning
environments thereby helping them to fulfil their egar ambitions.

Inverness CollegeaSe Sudy

Having been funded through the NPD programme, construction of the £45m Inverness College could start mucl
sooner. This in turn allowed the College to open in August 2015 and it is now home to over 7,006 Studen
Scotland, the rest of the UK, Europe and furtherafield.A f a0 GKS /2t € S3S A& YI {Ay3
future career paths, it is also supporting the economy. The College is the anchor organisation on the Invernes:
Campus, which is strategic business park developed by Highlands and Islands Enterprise (HIE) situated on the
outskirts of the CityAs well as having the very best teaching facilities, the College boasts the latest computer
technology as well as a firstass research cemgt and is expert in designing and delivering education, training
and development programmes which is helping attract businesses across a wide range of sectors to locate to the
Campus.

11
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STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
Business Review & Key Performance Indigat¢Continued)

Of the wo majorNPD funded road projects, the M8/M73/M74 motorway improvements hesncompleted,
directly connecting Edinburgh and Glasgow by motorway for the first time. This link, one of the busiest parts
of Scotl and’ s imaréadyrbenafijtingtheusamnds ofkoad users daily by reducing congestion
and significantly cutting down journey times, with the aim of saving up to 20 minutes at peak times.

Construction continues at pace on the Aberdeen Western Peripheral RouteRAWR second NPD road
project. When fully operational it is estimated the AWPR will deliver £6bn of wider economic benefit to the
area as well as dramatically improve travel times in the north east of Scotland.

And across Scot | ardyear theNMPH fuedsd AzuteeMentat Health and Notth Ayrshire
Community Hospital opened, with a further four acute health projects worth £450m in construction, including
the Royal Hospital for Sick Children and Department of Clinical Neurosciences.

Whenall complete, they will become firgtlass, modern hospital and health facilities capable of delivering the
very finest in healthcare for the benefit of many communities across Scotland.

SFT build

Welldesigned buildings, built for community use, hakie power to transform lives and be uplifting for local
communities. Through our build programme, new schools and community buildings are doing just that
creating employment, helping the environment, as well as providing locals with -myroved placesdr
them to learn, access health and social care services, play sport or work.

The Scotlanavide hub programme sits firmly within our build programme and is based upon a partnership
approach to deliver new community facilities which are built by five harbpganies spread across Scotland.

Since becoming fully operational in 2012, hub companies have built over 100 comibaséy buildings with

a further 60, valued at £1.1bn under construction, providing an economic stimulus in the areas where they are
built. The vast majority of this work is being awarded to many hundreds of SMEs which is supporting over
9,000 jobs.

hub Supporting Employmenta8eSudy

Laura Wilson who was previously a site administration assistant on a hub site was invited by BAMn® beco
a trainee site manager after demonstrating an eagerness to learn and showing real zeal for the construction
industry.

BAM put her through college and is now funding her studies for a BA Hons degree in Construction and Project
Management at Napier Un@rsity in Edinburgh, which Laura will complete over the next five years as she
continues to work on construction projects delivered through the hub programme.

Enhancing the use of buildings for communities and improving the quality of their design aveantp
elements of our work. Over the past year our teams have been buoyed by the steady stream of good news
where numerous hub projects have picked up higtdyeted industry awards 15 in total.

12
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STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
Business Review & Key Fermance Indicators (Continued)

A highlight during this past financial year was t
in Eastwood in East Renfrewshire, which during 2017 received an award at the Scottish Design Awards, a RIAS
award and a prestigious design award at the European Healthcare Awards. This is a joint, benchmark project
between NHS Greater Glasgow & Clyde and East Renfrewshire Council, delivered by hub West and developed
to accelerate the plan to bring health and socialeceogether and to help make services more accessible to

the public.

Eastwood Health and Car Centre @seSudy

The Eastwood Health and Care Centre in the Williamwood area of East Renfrewshire has brought together the
services of East Renfrewshire Couacd NHS Greater Glasgow & Clyde into a unigque, comrdoniigsed
ASNIAOSR 0dzAf RAY3 SYLX 28Ay3 WIHIAESQ 62Nl Ay3 LINAYyO.

This joint occupancy allows the community to access multiple services in one location in a central setting with
easy access. Itdorporates GP practices, integrated health & social care services, it has a community hub
facility and a cafe that serves as a focal point for both the community and professionals alike.

The reference design used for this building was developed andrgeghpy SFT as an approach to be shared
with others to improve future health centres across Scotland.

SFT has continued to |l ead on the £1.8bn Scotl and’ .

These schools are designed to meet advances in new teaching medmodsechnology, with the local
community very much at their heart. Typically they are openwith normal school hours and are providing
the local community with access to firslass health, leisure and education facilities.

Alford Community CampuGase Sudy

Many local authorities are now extending the use of their secondary school for local communities to use as well
as incorporating nurseries and primary schools into the building so even more people can benefit.

Alford Community Campus in Aberdeains is one such building. It provides education facilities for children

and pupils aged-38, it has a 25m four lane swimming pool, community library, indoor and outdoor sports
facilities available for the community to use as well as being the base ®HNEBRS Sy &8 KA NB / 2 dzy OA |
Learning and Development team.

Of the 112 schools in the programme, 50 are open which are benefiting some 30,000 pupils who are being
educated in firsiclass environments and a further 42 schools are being built, witheimaining schools in the
final stages of development and design.

13
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STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
Business Review & Key Performance Indicators (Continued)

The ways in which pupils learn are exdianging so it is vital the environment where they are taugeps
pace. In 2014, Scottish Government launched its £5m Inspiring Learning Spaces programme aimed at trialling
new approaches to learning and teaching methods, with SFT managing the programme funds.

Across the programme, SFT has worked with 21 dtsuon their creative and ambitious projects. Their ideas
are being shared and are providing al/l Scotl and’ s
future investment.

Scottish Government is set t o childarefonpresdhoaldhildren. Toar e n
support this expanded Early Years initiative and building on the experience of managing the school investment
programme, SFT’'s educati on t e aaxstingdbuildingd, tbiaforinaégond at a
making on future infrastructure investment to support the initiative.

As part of SFT's support to the Construction Proc
Building Information Modelling, or BIM as it is referred to across tlhedy This digital technology allows
architects, engineers and all those involved in the construction industry to share information more easily and
work better together.

Understanding the huge benefits BIM would have across the public sector, SFT le&amtlaamdwide
stakeholder engagement programme, guiding and informing those responsible for construction in the public
sector, on the benefits of BIM on their projects.

As a result of the engagement programme, SFT launched its BIM website in Apals2dbéspoke resource
for the public sector to use. On the back of our work, Scottish Government issued a policy note in the same
month stating that BIM must be used on most future Scottish Government construction projects.

Reflecting the success of tlgsound-breaking work, over the course of the year several administrations from
across the world have been in touch with our BIM team, seeing aspects of what is happening in Scotland as
market leading.

SFTconnect

For any country, securing the very besdgithl connectivity is an essential part of creating a successful
economy. Within SFT connect, our team is working with industry to ensure the right mechanisms, partnerships
and commercial approaches are developed that will deliver a wadds telecommuication infrastructure

for Scotland in a practical way.

Despite significant investment being made by both the public and private sectors in digital infrastructure
across Scotland, there is a patchwork of unreliable levels of mobile coverage in placesmwiestment by
Mobile Network Operators is not seen as commercially viable.

Such places, for exampl e, are on Scotland’s isla

beginning to change that with a novel approach being taken on the igib@ll to deliver 4G which is also
acting as a pathfinder for further projects.

14
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STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
Business Review & Key Performance Indicators (Continued)

4G on ColCaseSudy

Being able to use a mobile phone, no matter where you aregarded as a vital element of modern living.

But on the Isle of Coll, the remoteness and rugged landscape of the Inner Hebridean island meant there has
never been a mobile reception which impacts negatively on local businesses, the community andaoerist t
Working in partnership with numerous stakeholders SFT developed an innovative atetnosglution to the

Aafl yRSNDAa LINB-EeISNI sRhSKS P2 adi FYalSad y2¢6 26ySR FyR Y
with the mobile network supplied by B&d Vodafone.

The Isle of Coll was the first Scottish island to have 4G mobile coverage which is now opening up many
commercial opportunities for local businesses that are taken for granted on the mainland.

SFT has also supported the Home Office orkEiteergency Services Network (ESN) programme where 4G
mobile coverage will be used to replace th@rentradio service. As part of the ESN, the Home Office will
install its own mast infrastructure t ewlherelodrtegnaps L
has influenced the delivery approach. Bpoofadus e o f
ensure other Mobile Network Operators can use it with minimal additional investment to incentivise sharing
across these rural locans, and thus being able to provide additional coverage in rural areas

Building on the s ueeakiangworttobringds conrediviy tethedste of Collénd the
support provided to the Home Ofamng thé teambasetarpdktacy S
develop a 4G infill programme for Scottish Government that will focus on installing future proofed masts into
areas where there will otherwise be no coverage, even after the Mobile Network Operators have completed
their invesment.

To support the Scottish Government's Digital Strat
industry and universities to ensure Scotland is at the forefront of 5G research and development. More
recently, SFT has led on the de@mhent and establishment of the Scotland Innovation Partnership. SIP is an
open framework to which companies or individual s
class digital connectivity vision as they progress the development of 5@ tie extension of 4G rural
coverage as a stepping stone.

SFT green

Our focus is to support the transition to a low carbon economy and to help Scotland reach its climate change
targets. Not only does our work generate cost and carbon savings, bppioas local economic development

and improves the quality of public buildings and assets.

Our street lighting replacement programme is one initiative that is making a big impact on climate change
targets. As of 31 Mar ch e&&MhWpshad Beth raplacedoy enedfficientd ' s 9
LEDs hel ping Scotland’s councils save over £12m a
tonnes of CO2 annually.

Spendto-s ave i nvestment by Scot | arsgrbjectedctoreachcEBOOm by @021 L E D
which is estimated to secure £1.2bn of leteym savings across the LED replacement programme.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
Business Review & Key Performance Indicators (Continued)

West Dunbartonsire Street LightingCase Sudy
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It quickly became apparent to West Dunbartonshire C€ibtinat by replacing all its 16,500 lamps, it could cut
its energy bill by 65% thereby saving £0.5m a year. Such has been the success of the programme that the Counci
is on track to save £20m from its future budgets.

Our work with Scottish Governmentlamunching the Nofbomestic Energy Efficiency Framework has seen the
first ten projects progress to procurement with a capital value of over £10m generating guaranteed savings in
excess of £20m over a 3@ar period.

As a key part nerbonimfrasBuctoreé Tramgitidn' Psogrdmone; out tam has helped invest
more than £68m in lowcarbon projects that will attract matefunding and deliver low carbon technology
innovation and secure wider economic benefits to local areas.

SFT place

Huge advanements are being made as to how public buildings are used and maintained. In turn this is
supporting the delivery of improved public services and significant progress is being made with much of our
activity focusing on offices and the sale of surplus proes.

The driving force behind public service reform across Scotland is to create a more efficient and effective public
sector for the benefit of people living and working there. To support this, buildings are key and our team is
providing practical supgrt to progress a range of collaborative projects, both large and small, demonstrated
recently when the Care I nspectorate relocated 100
2017, which has achieved efficienavimgs for both organiions.

Foll owing guidance prepared by our t eam, the pu
programme and is pursuing much higher performance and occupancy levels for its buildings.

On the office estate, for example, and demonstrating teed mmi t ment to a pr ogr amme
local authorities, emergency services and the NHS have already achieved significant revenue savings of over
£200m and have also reduced the amount of office space they use by on average 30%.

Similarly, as paof our ongoing programme with Scotti€bovernment, over £20m of annuavenue savings
have been achieved from the better use of existing buildings and the release of all, or part of, 50 buildings.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
Business Review Key Performance Indicators (Continued)

Smarter Workplace€aseSudy

{O020G0AaK D2gSNYyYSyiQa {20AFf {SOdNARGeE& 5AmBOb2 N} G&
Smarter Workplaces programme.

Previously, as with many other public girivate sector organisations, each member of staff at the Directorate

had their own desk and storage. Today, desks are now shared and more informal meeting space has been
created which also includes small quiet pods for concentrated work. An increas®ps] video conferencing

and Skype usage are making it easier to work from different spaces and on the move.

As aresult, across all directorates at Atlantic Quay, the Smarter Workplaces programseestaff numbers
increase 8% to 900 which is allving Scottish Government to exit from other office space. Importantly, this is
also about providing firstlass working environments allowing stédf feel more connected to their wider
organisation and enabling collaborative working between departments.

SFT's team of property specialists are coll aborat
surplus properties. The recent sale of Victoria Hospital by NHS Greater Glasgow and Clyde has produced both
capital receipts and revenue savingsaadl as allowing 500 new houses to be built by the Sanctuary Group

one of the UK’'s |l eading soci al |l andl or ds.

Over the year, our support to the public sector has resulted in more ambitious projectagrguicker to
market and achiewmg greater cash reirns. In the case of the NHS alone, over the past year, over £50m of
property sales have been generatedlowing reinvestment in new health and social care facilities.

Our team has championed a “one publ i cefranengofealicyappr

and the prioritisation of infrastructure investment, that has led to the creation of a smaller, leaner and greener
estate. This approach will continue.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)

ESTIMATE OF BENEFITS

Assetoutinthisreport,tn benef i ts from SFT's work are wide ran
with colleagues across the public and private sectors.

Every year we provide a financial estimate of the
term nature of SFT’'s work pr ogr ammeascalculatioreappmoach whicid o | o |
is then considered on a I@earrolling average basis. This methodology has beelependently validated by

both the London School of Economics and Giidrdrnton aml the approach is summarised on our website

For the 2016/ 17 financi al year , the SFT benefit es
and the 2014/15 figure of £135m and demonstrates good progress in meetingthesamdét i n SFT' s
Corporate Plan to deliver benefits within a range of £580r80m over that fiveyear period. Supporting
materi al and Grant Thorntoynear Be ne $ tifdund anzodriwebaite i o &
Taking thnefiyesar 'tsogbeet her with the seven previous
estimated to be over £1bn.

The financial estimate i s one meWehavepevioudihighllydedb e n e f
some of the wider benefits suclsahe impact of improving digital connectivity on rural economies; the carbon
savings from street lighting and energy efficiency programmes; and how approaches supporting economic
investment, such as the Growth Accelerator, unlocks private investmenti@ades long term employment.

Work is currently underway to consider better ways to capture, collate and present the wider benefits. Next
years annual report will include more detail on this work.

FINANCIAL REVIEW & RESULTS

SFT follows International Fineial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and applies the best practice in Corporate
Governance required by the Financi al Reporting C
seriously the Financi al Report i ngpleXand moré focused onni t i
material information. The financial information provided is consistent with these standards and pvide
transparency over where and how public money is investedexspa:nded.

The Group works to lead, develop and suppbe delivery of major infrastructure investment programmes

as discussed in the Business Review above. The funds associated with these projects do not generally flow
through SFT as they come from the Scottish Government and a variety of other sources, and @@ gran
directly to procuring public sector bodies such as Local Authorities, Health Boards and Scottish Government
Agencies with which SFT works. These funds are then used by the public sector body to pay for the works
procured from private sector contractars

In 2016/17 SFT received income from the Scottish Government comprising revenue furdipigal funding

and a loan to fund investment§he revenue funding met operating costs of £10.1m (2015/16 £9.8m) and
covered movemenin the pensionliability of £1.9m (2015/16(£1.63m) and other nonrcash items. The core
operating cost of SFT met by Scottish Government therefore increased by £0.3m from 2015/16 to
2016/17. Capi t al grant funding of £0.5m (2015/ 16: £1.
programme. This was supplemented by investment and other third party income of £1.4m (2015/16: £1.1m)
which was used to offset relevant costs and created an operating surplus in the investment subsidélhy,

£2.4m (2015/16: £4.0m) of fundgere provded asan interest free loan from the Scottish Government which

were used to fund investments b F Bubsidiary SFTi
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STRATEGIC REPORT (Continued)
Financial Review & Results (Continued)

The diagrambele s ummar i ses t he $undingaodettefolioviingt8ife Bets®ut the yséss
in more detail:

SFT Sources of Funds (£'m)

= SG Revenue Grant£11.5 SG Capital Grant £0.5

= |[nvestment & Other Income £1 =.Scottish Government Loan £2.4

The fundgeceived by SHbtalled £15.8m (2015/16: £14.1m) anekre applied to the following areas

o 2016/17 2015/16
Application of Funds MOY MOY
Hub programmaedelivering education, health argbcial care project;
which was applied as follows:

Subordinated debt investments in hub projects (funded by Scot 2.6 3.9
Government loans or retained cash)

Capital enabling fundspassed through to

programme 0.5 15
Total capital expenditure 3.1 5.4
Revenue grant applied to operating costs (see note 7 for analysig 101 98
corporation tax payable ' '
Movement on pension fund deficit: increase/(decrease) 1.9 (1.6)
Total operating costs and charges 12.0 8.2
Total 15.1 13.6
SFTProfitsretained forinfrastructure development and investmen 0.7 0.5
Total Funds Received 15.8 14.1

The investments ugpport a range of community facilities across Scotland amdaaticipated to produce
financial returns over futureears. Our operating costs are carefully controlled and relate primarily to the
salary costs of SFT employees. The annual benefits generated by SFT from these resmsesseid annually
and was £138nfior 2016/17, as outlined in the preceding Businddsview
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Financial Review & Results (continued)

The Group Statement of Comprehensive Income records a surplus after tax of £0.7m (2016: £0.5m). The
2016/ 17 surplus was ¢$miand refleatsdolelymopedafing susplusobimvesend i a r vy
income less operatingxpenses and tax as was the case in the previous y#ais is applied to our wider
infrastructure development anthvestmentopportunities.

The net assets of the Group increased by £0.7m from £&i68d March 2016 to £7.3m as at 31 March 2017.
The major movements in the Statement of Financial Rositontributing to this include:

1 Investments in the subordinated debt of hub projects totalling £2.5m which were funded through an

interest free loan fom the Scottish Government;

1 Accrued investment income due from hub projects of £1.8m; and

1 A decrease in cash balances of Bh.and other miscellaneous movements in working capital.
Under the terms of its Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Conmgemot distribute profits to its
shareholders. Investments will make a return over time and these revenues will be used to offset costs in the
Company and/or make further investments in infrastructure.

RISKS AND MITIGATION

The Group maintains a strategisk register which is derived from an aggregation of the egiel risks of the

projects and programmes in which SFT is involved, along with operational risks within the Group. Risks are
evaluated against their potential to impact on the outcomes expéaif SFT, the Group's operations and its
stakeholders. The risks and management's mitigating actions are reviewed by the Board rego&atple

below details the ignificantGroup operational riskand t he Group’ s approach to
these.SFT is working with procuring bodies to mitigate these risks but does not have complete control over
them.

Spnificant Operational Risks Approach to Management and Mitigation of Risks

Resource levels in central

Government and procuring SFT supports authoritidsy ensuring that resource needs are fully
authorities to take forward understood and where appropriate ensuring resource needs are
priority projects in a timely incorporated into funding agreements for future projects.
manner

Operational peformance of
bodies involved in delivering SFT SFT provides operational team support for public bodies preparin
infrastructure programmes lead | for the operational phases of NPD projectalddBFM projects

to quality, programme or delivered through hub. SFT also ensures key stakeholders are
commercial issues during project regularly updated on project progress and specific delivery issues
delivery.

SFIpromotesproactive management of programmes witlear,
strong supporting evidence for the budgets required to ensure val
for money is maximised and programmes continudrizetable.

Delay in progressing pexts due
to budgetary pressures

SFT's skilled staff are key t
from a rare skills baseaRure to retain key staff remains a risk to

benefit delivery. SFT wilbntinue to focus on employee engagemen
and employee reward packages.

Key staffretention
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Thedirectorsmoni t or SF T’ standintrkal cordrol aygtems asrdetailed within the Statement
of Internal Control. During the financial year 2015 an external review was un
controls with no major issues being identified.

GOING CONCERN

Thedirectors believe it is appropriate for the SFT Financial Statements to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting. Thisisbasedono nf i r mat i o n franfits Sdreholdgrthd Scaottish Goernmenipr

the financial year 20418, SFT' s r ol e gterm pgregtainmes of iinnggentl witmassociated
investment income forecast for a period in excess of 20 yeard the regular discussion between the Board

andt he Scottish Government regarding SFT's future &

As such thelirectorsbelieveSFwill be able to continue in opation and meet itdiabilities taking account of

its current position and principal riskand issues as detailed above and within the Report of the Audit
Committee.

FUTURE PLANS

The Group's longerm plans are described its 201419 Corporate Plawhi ch can be found o
The Group's priorities and detailed objectives are set outspublished 20%/18 Business Plan. Outcomes
agains t hese objectives will be published on SFT’' s w
Through deliveringhese objectives, the Group continues to aim to deliver betwed&®@n and #50m of

savings and benefits to infrastructure investment in Scotlamdr the five years of theurrent 201419
corporate plan

The 20%/18 operating budget has been set A10.4m reflecting£1.2m of post taxthird party income and
£9.2mof ScottishGovernmentgrant. t is anticipated by thalirectorsthat the budget will be fully utilised in

the forthcoming year.

The Strategi®eport is approved by the Board of Directors and sijon its behalf by:

(- —

Barry White
Chief Executive

Date:21 August 2017
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Directors

The business review of tH@roupis included in the Strategic Report in accordance with the Companies Act
2006s414 (Al).

TheDirectorswho held office during the year and post year end are as follows:

lan Russell Chairman (appointed 1 January 2017)

Sir Angus Grossart FormerChairman(retired 31 December 2@)
Graeme Bissett Non-Executive Director

James Fletcher Non-Executive Director

Fiona Mackenzie Non-Executive Director

Carolyn Dwyer Non-Executive Director

Ann Faulds NonExecutive Directofappointed 1 April 2017)
Graham Watson NonExecutive Director(appointed 1 April 2017)
Barry White Chief Execut®

Peter Reekie Deputy Chief Executive and Directorimfestments

The Company is wholly owned by the Scottish Ministers. Under section 251 of the Companies Act 2006, the
Scottish Ministers are considered to be a Shadow Director of the Company.

Disclasure of Information tothe Auditor

Thedirectorswho held office at the date of approval of tHdrectors Report confirm t hat
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditor is unaware and dieettor has taken al

the steps that they ought to have taken asdimector to make themselves aware of any relevant audit

i nformation and to establish that the Company’s a

Auditor

The auditor, ScotMoncrieff, is deemed to be reappointadhder Section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006.
However, he Group will be undertaking a competitivetender process in respect of the provision of external
audit services in 2017/18The Group has elected to dispense with the holding of the AGM, theglaf
financial statements in a general meeting and the annual appointment of the auditor as meetings between
the sole shareholder, Scottidflinistersand the Company occur on a regular basis.

{¢1 ¢9a9b¢ hC 5Lw9/ ¢hw{Q w9{thb{NUALRERORT BND FINANCMIO { t
STATEMENTS

Thedirectorsare responsible for preparing the Annual Report andRhmancial Bitements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires thdirectorsto prepare kancial3atements for eactiinancial period. Under that law

they have elected t o prHEgnaaSatenehtein aGoordange with mirnalanahp a n
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
interpretations endorsed by the European Union.

TheFinancial Bitements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and Parent Comp anandRarentd® rag a prdfiefer iBat metiod.’ s

23



SCOTTISH FUTURES TRUST OMITE
ANNUAL REPORND GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5Lw9/ ¢ h@RTTontinged)
{¢!r ¢9a9b¢ hC 5Lw9/ ¢hw{Q wo9{thb{L.L[L¢CL9{ Lb wo{t 9,
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing these Financialbfements, thedirectorsare required to:

9 select suitable accounting policies and then apply themsgstently;

1 make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudeTd;

1 prepare theFnancialSatements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Parent ©@mpanywill continue in business.

Thedirectorsare responsitd for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Parent Company andble them to ensure that its Financial
Satements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have general rebpioynor taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets ofRheent Compangnd to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.

Thedirectorshave decided to prepare voluntarily a Report on Corporate Governance tees Group were
required to comply with the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority in relation to those matters.

Thedirectorsare responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
i ncluded on Le&giBlationsn the éJK governang the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

On behalf of the Board

(- —

Barry White
Chief Executive

Date:21 August 2017
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVEHRNAN

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance, business integrity and professionalism in
all its activities. Throughout the accounting year ending 31 Marcii,26& Group has complied with all the
relevant provisions of the UK Camate Governance Code issued by the Financial Reporting Council as best
practice guidance, except as explained below, notwithstanding that the Group is not a listed group to which
the provisions are directed. The following exceptions are noted:

1 there is no Nominations Committee as narxecutive Board appointments, including their terms and
conditions of employment, ar e det eScotishnMinisterby t h
Executivedirector appointments are considered by the Board

| Directas are not subject to election or relection at General Meetings as required by the Cddm
executivedirectors are appointed to the Board by the Scottish Ministéh@seappointments are made
under a system regulated and monitored by the CommissioneEfbical Standards in Public Life
Scotland wheepolicieson term of office anddiversityare available on their website;

| In view of the Group's responsibilities to take account of the provisions set out iM#rmagement
Statement and Financial Memardum (MSFN), compliance is not appropriate with the provision in the
UK Corporate Governance Code that performaredated elements of remuneratioto be transparent,
stretching and rigorously applied’he Board carries out the role of a Remunenat©ommitee as
remuneration of norexecutivedirectors is set by Scottish Government;

1 The Board has not identified a Senior Independent Director as the shareholder appoints and appraises
the performance of the Chairman, and the Chairnsuconsideredndependentand has no financial
interest in the performance of the Company;

1 The Board has requested the Audit Committee regularly review the need for an internal audit function.
The size and nature of the organisation, alongside a clear controls framewdrk speific extended
review of controls in January 20a6id February 201'has led the Audit Committee to conclude to date
that such a function is not required.

Board of Directors

The Board is the principal decistaraking forum. It has overall responsibilftyr leading and controlling the
Group and is accountable to the Group’s sole share
performance. The Board approves Group strategy and monitors performance. The Board has adopted a formal
scheduleof matters specifically reserved for its decision, which is reviewed on an annual basis.

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are distinct and separate, with a clear division of
responsibilities. The Chairman leads the Board and ensuresffibetive engagement and contribution of all

the directors. Executiveirectors have responsibility for all operational business and act in accordance with
the authority delegated from the Board. Responsibility for tihgplementation of policy, strategy ad
operational management is delegated to tbeecutivedirectors.

During 2016/17, Sir Angus Grossart retired as Chair of SFT and SFTi on 31 December 2016 and lan Russell we
appointed as Chair on 1 January 2017.

TheretiingCh ai r man’ s odorhn@tments argahairhanship of:tNoble Grossart Ltd (and related
entities), Scotland International Ltd, Fine Art Society Plc, Lyon & Turnbull Ltd, Wright Health Group Ltd,
Edinburgh Partners Ltd, Charlotte Street Partners, the Burrell Renaissance akdiiilbergh International

Cultural Summit. Theetiring Chairman is also adh-executiveD r ect or of Cul ture and |
Place Industries Ltd and FALS Property Ltd.

25



SCOTTISH FUTURES TRUST OMITE
ANNUAL REPORND GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board of Directors (continued)

The new Chairman’s other significant commitments a
directorship of The Mercantile Investment Trust plc &izkerdeen Diversified Income and Growth Trubts
nonfinancial interestsncludeChairofDie bl ed Peopl e’ s Empl oyment Corpor

Boardmeetings take place regularly throughout each period. Boaegtings are structured to allow open

discussionandalli r ect or s participate in discussi ngnarcialle Gr
and risk management. The Board is supplied with comprehensive information in advance of each Board
Meeting, including financi al and operational repo.

Seven Board meetings were held during the year.diteetorsalso participated in dter meetings relating to
aspects of the Grodps a cduiing thetyéae s

Board Balance anchtlependence

In the year ended 31 March 2@1the Boardncludedfive nonexecutivedirectors (including the Chairman).

To failitate succession planningyt addiional nonexecutive drectors were appointed on 1 April 201The

Board considers that, based on the criteria set out in the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code, all
non-executive directors are independent The norexecutive directors combine broad business and
commercial experience witihdependent and objective judgeent and constructively challenge and assist
dewelopment of strategic matterslhe Board functions effectively and efficiently and is considléo be of an
appropriate size in relation to the Group’s | evel

The Board aims to achieve a balance betwaen-executive andexecutivedirectorsso as to promote clear
and effective leadership and maintaihe highest standards of integrity and professionalism across the
Group’s business activities.

Reelection of Directors

The nonexecutivedirectorshave been appointed and f&ppointed by Scottish Ministers in accordance with
the Office for the Commissiondor Ethical Standards iRublicLifei n S ¢ 02013 @odedof Rractice for
Ministerial Appointments to Public Bodies in Scotland related guidance on its application

Theretred Chai r man’ s term of of fice ended wanhrecBileq Dec e
commendngoffice on 1 January 2017. Two of then-executivedirectors are scheduled to step down during
2017/18 and their replacementsommenced their roles on 1 April 2017.

Information

As permitted by the Companies Act 2006, the Boaad Hispensed with the appointment of a Company
Secretary. The Chairman is responsible for advisinglitleetorson all governance matters and for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed. ditectorsare entitled to obtain independent professioradvice at the

Gr oup’ s Minutgs efiBesasd.and SuBommittee meetings are available on the SFT website following
their approval.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

Performance Ealuation

The performance of noexecutivedirectorsis assessetly the Chairman and the performance of executive
directors is assessed by the Chairman and the -amecutivedirectors The Chairman's performance is
assessed by the Scottish Government.

Board Committees

To provide effective overview and leadership, tleaRi can establish Committees composed ofexecutive
directorswith specific governance responsibilities. The Committ&hairmanship and Membership will be
refreshed on a regular basi&ecutive directors and senior managers are invited to attend Bidbaand
Committee Meetings as appropriate. Currently the only Board Comnsiteethe Group Audit Committee
and SFTi’'s Investment Committee.

Attendance at Board and Committee éétings
Attendance byBoard Members atBoard andCanmittee meetings held duringhe year was as follows:

SFT Group SFTi mvess'i;'em
Board Audit Committee Board .

Committee
Number of meetings 7 2 3 6
lan Russéll 3 - 1 -
Sir Angus Grossart 4 - 1 -
Graeme Bissett 7 2 3 6
Carolyn Dwyer 7 - 3 4
James Fletcher 6 2 2 5
FionaMackenzie 7 2 3 6
Barry White 7 2% 3 3
Peter Reekie 7 2% 3 6

*|In attendance, not members of the Committee

!lan Russell was appointed as Chair of SFT and SFTi on 1 January 2017

2 Sir Angus Grossart retired as Chair of &IISFTi on 31 December 2016

Attendance at SFTi Investme@mmittee ison the basis of the necessary quorum being present, reflecting
the nature of the agenda and the frequency of the meetings.

Relations withSoleShareholder

As disclosed in the Dir e ddlder tse Scofish Mioisters, is corsidereto lmeu p *
a Shadow Director of the Groupl'he(retired and new)Chairman, on behalf of thdirectors has met with

Scottish Ministeraind officialsegularly during theyear and post year enttd understand their \véws and has

reported these to the Board.

On behalf of the Board

Barry White
Chief Executive

Date 21 August 2017
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STATEMENT ®INTERNAL CONTROL

The key elements of the system of internal control are as follows:

Control Structure

Giventhenatureath si ze of the Group, SFT' s drectorsandomanagetsr u c t
at all levels and there is no current need for a separate internal audit function, though this will be kept under
review. The organisation has clear lines of rexgbility and effective communication channels which ensures

that best practice in managing risks and controls is consistently applied. In additioGrolvg s ext er n
auditor presengreports to the Audit Committee which include any significant integmaitrol matters which

they have identified.

Separate controls angovernancest r uct ures are in place across SFT’
receives an annual update on these.

Identification and Monitoring of Business Risks

TheGrouphas adopéd a riskbased approach to internal control by evaluating the likelihood and impact of
risk and putting in place appropriate levels of control to mitigate each risk. Procedures include an ongoing
process of identifying, evaluating and managing key riskk @where appropriate, enhancing the systems
which manage these risks. Regular review of the risks is undertaken by the Audit Committee and ultimately
the Board.

Corporate Information Systems

TheGroupoperates a budgeting and financial reporting systevhich includes the preparation of a business

plan containing detailed annual budgets. The system provides monthly comparison of actual results against
financial year budgedndregularly revised forecasts, all of which are reviewed by the Béarancid control
procedures are in place which providesurance on the integrity ofti@roug s f i nances.

Effectiveness of Internal Controls

Thedi rect ors are responsible for reviewing the eff
including intenal financial control. This is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
regarding the safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or disposition and the maintenance of proper
accounting records and the reliability of financial infation used within the business or for publication.

These controls are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
due to circumstances which may reasonably be foreseen and can only provide reasonable abhsohae
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

On behalf of the Board

(-~

Barry White
Chief Executive

Date:21 August 2017
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Details of t he Board’ s responsi bi |l i porteos Cofporate r e mi
Governance. Details af drectors remuneration are as follows:

Directors' Remuneration

Inthe yearto 31 March2@ t h e Co maxexutiyediractoraveere paid fees for their services the
Group. Each noeexecutivedirector hasa letter of appointment outlining their expected time commitment
and details of the per diem rate set by Scottish Government fore@cutivedirectorsof £325. Sir Angus
Grossartwaivedpayment from Scottish Futures Trusmitedfor his services as Cin@an whichtotalled 32
days over the period. Expenses £5,053 (2016: £6,738) were paid to Noble Grossart Limited, which is
controlled by Sir Angus Grossart, in respect of administrative support services prdsit&iissetiaswaived

his remuneratiorfor the roleof Chairman of SFT and SFTi

The fees received by the othdirectorsin the years to 31 March 2@dand 31 March 208.for duties provided
to the Group are as follows:

2017 2016

£ £
James Fletcher 7,800 7,800
Graeme Bissett 7,800 7,800
FionaMackenzie 7,800 7,800
Carolyn Dwyer 7,800 7,800

The total expenses immbursed during the year werel60(2015/16: £67).

Barry White was appointed as Chief Executive on 1 May 2009.
His remuneration for the year was:

2017 2016
£ £
Salary 189,615 185,897
Pension 37923 37,179
Car Allowance 11,500 11,500

Peter Reekie was appointed Bxecutive Directoon 29 June 2018nd became Deputy Chief Executive and
Director of Investments oh8 August 2014.
His remuneration for thgear was:

2017 2016
£ £
Salary 158,012 154,914
Pension 31,602 30983
Car Allowance 9,200 9,200

29



SCOTTISH FUTURES TRUST OMITE
ANNUAL REPORND GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w9t hwe¢ hb 5Lw9/ ¢hw{Q w9a!bow! ¢Lhb 602y iGAYydzsSRV
Directors' Remuneration (continued)

2017 2016
£ £
Highestpaidd r e ¢ t oremuseratico t a | 201115 197,397
Median totalremuneration 73,330 70,118
Ratio 274 2.82

The ratio haslecreasediue to the enployment ofnew staffthe impact ofwhichwas toincreasethe
median pay in the year. Total remuneration includes sadmgycar allowance. There were no bonus
or benefits in kind ifinancial year2015/16 or 2016/17.

Pensions
SFT has established a pension scheme with Lothian Pension Fund which is administdredClity bf
Edi nburgh Council. The Company’s pension scheme

employee and the Company operate on a sliding scale.

In the year ended 31 March 20,164 of the @ mp a rmplogees includintwo directorswere members of
the pension fund.

The highest paidi r e cpersion’ has a transfer value £327,161(2015/ 16: £264,843).

On behalf of the Board

(- —

Barry White
Chief Executive

Date:21 August 2017
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Role and Rsponsbilities

The Group Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in discharging its responsibilities in relation
to the financial affairs of the Group, the arrangements for accounting, financial reporting and regulatory
compliance, the standardad effectiveness of internal control, the arrangements for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks faced by the Group and the arrangements for external audit. The Group
Audit Committee meets regularly throughout the accounting year amdaddition, it meets the external
auditor privately.

Composition
Members ofthe Group Audit Committe®r the financial year were
1 Graeme Bissett is a Chartered Accountant, who sfényears in the accountancy profession, has
been CFO in internationgroups and has chaireghdis chairing several audit committees for listed
companies.
9 James Fletcher, Councilland Provostof East Renfrewshire Counaiho has extensive experience in
providing financial oversight to a variety of entities.
1 FionaMackenie is an honorary Professor of Management at Stirling University, was previously Chief
Executive of Forth Valley NHS Board and has extensive experience of leading major public bodies

In the year ended 31 March 20]1there weretwo meetings of the AudiCommittee. The Board is satisfied
that the Committee membership has relevant financial and business experience.

Resporsibilities and Rview of the External Aiditor
During the year the pincipal activities of the Auditommittee included:

9 considering andecommending to the Board for approvie Annual Fnancial Satements and
reviewing t he repaxtthereomal auditor’ s

1 reviewing the scope, execution, results, cost effectiven@sdependence and objectivity of the
external auditor;

1 reviewing and maiitoring the independence of the external auditor in relation to raundit
assignments, taking into account relevant ethical guidance

T reviewing and approving t Hieancialxé¢aewitmafocusaon thé t or ’
identification of areas baudit risk, and consideration of the appropriateness of kel of audit
materiality adopted;

1 reviewing the efftiency of the external audit process ah@ quality of the audit engagement partner
and the auditeam;

1 reviewing the appropriateness ofé¢h C o m paacauptingspolicies; and

1 ensuring the adequacy of the internal control systeansl standards.

Auditor and Audit Tenure

Scott Moncrieff has been auditor sincetle mpany’ s i ncorporation in 2008.
t he audi mance'orsargguar Hasist taking into consideration the services and advice provided to the
Company and the fees charged for these serviédefmrmal re-tender exercise will take place in 2017/18.
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Safeguardinghe Auditor@ Obijectivity andmdependence

The Group has a policy in place whereby their Auditor can providendit services to a value not exceeding
50% of the agreed external audit fee if authorised by the Direct@avporate Services and Low Carbdhe
Audit Committee can authorise neaudit services up to 100% of the audit feEhe Auditor cannot provide
non-audit services to a value exceeding 100% of the external audit fee. This ensures the' siobjestivity
and independence.

There were nao-audit services provided to the Company by the Auditorthe year These relatd to
corporation tax compliance workK/ AT advicand a review of the group internal control3heseservicesvere
performed by staff from Scot¥loncrieff, who had no involveent with the external audit, thus the objectivity
and independence of the external audit was not compromidégk total fees paid to the audit@an be found
in note 7 to the Financialt&ements. The audit and corporation tax fees for SFTi were paid DyaSd
recharged via the management charge.

Significant IssuesdnhsideredRegarding the Annual Report and the Financit®&ments

During the year, thédudit Committee considered the sigeiint issues and areas afykaudit risk in respect
of the Annual Rport and Financiabtatements. The Audit Committeeviewed the external adit planand
concluded that the appropriatareas of audit risk relevant tthe Companyhad been identified and that
suitable audifprocedures had been pin place to obtain reagmable assurance that th@nancial3atements
as a whole would b&ee of material misstatements.

Significant issue How the issue was addressed

The group has two main sources of funding:

1) Tke funding provided by the Scottish Government; and

2) The interest it receives on the working capital loans and subordin
deht invested in the hub Companies and the Design Build Finance
Maintain (DBFM) SpeciBurposeVehicles V) companies.

The Audi Committee reviews, through thimternal Control and
Financial Procedures Manual, the process of the monthly drawdowr
from the Scottish Government and confirms that it has been accoun
for correctly via oversight of the monthly managementaunts proces
and the annual Financiateeements.

The Audit Committee members as members of the SFTi Investment
Committeeand SFTi Boargview each investment made and monitor
their performance. In addition, confirmation of all interest income du
is received fronexternal third parties verifying the completeness of tf
amounts recorded within the accounts.

The assumptions used in the IAS 19 pension valuation are provided
the actuary to the scheme and reviewedah year by the Audit
Accounting for the defined Committee to ensure that the assumptions used are appropriate. Th
benefit pension scheme Audit Committee through discussions with the finance team and the
external auditor ensure that the pension is accounted for and disclos
in accordance with IAS 19.

The Audit Committee members as members of the SFT board are
Funding from the Scottish involved in year round communication with the Scottish Governmen
Government including in relation to future funding and consider the funding levels
agreed when assessitigeCo mpany ' s goi ng Ccon¢

Revenue bimg over or
understated in the Financial
Satements
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Significant Issues Considered Regarding the Annual Report and the Financial Statefoenti®ued)

Significant issue

How the issue was addressed

The risk that investmentsra
not consolidated in SFT group
accounts when they should be

Through discussions with the auditor, the Audit Committee reviews |
criteria regarding consolidation and the relationship tB®up has with
the companies th&roup has invested in, in ordéo establish if
consolidation is required.

Risk of the recoverability of
investments in terms of
repayment of loans and
interest receivable.

The Investment Committee reviews investment performance. SFT a
has board representation on all hubCarsd DBM SP\tompanies
which provides additional reassurance regarding the performantieeo|
companiego whom SFTi provides working capital loansubordinated
debtto.

Loans fronthe Scottish
Government to SFT which are
then onlent to SFTi

SFT draws dowoéns from the Scottish Government which are then
on-lent to SFTi to make investments in the subordinated debt and st
capitalof DBFMSP\tompanies The Investment Committee approves
each investment made by SFTi and the funding thditas/n downfrom
the Scottish Government and then-tent to SFTi to fund these
investments. Through the review of the management accounts and
statutory financial statements, the Board ensure that all loans from t
Scottish Government by SFT which ardemnt to SFTi recorded and
disclosed correctly.

On behalf of theAudit Committee

Graeme Bissett
Chairman
Audit Committee

Date:21 August 2017
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We have audited the Financidb&ments of Scotsh Futures Trust Limited for the year ended 31 March7201
which comprise the Groupnd Parent Compan8tatement of Comprehensive Income, the Group and the
Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the Group and the Parent Company Statementsaif Financ
Position, the Group and the Parent Company Statements of Cask &fhalthe related notesThe financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adoptethe European Union.

This report is made solely to the company’ s member
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state@o thgo any ' s me mhb
those matterswea required to state to them in an auditor

extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respadlisilio anyone other than the Company and
the @ mp any ' s asmboan ferrour audit work, for thisport, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective Responsibilities die Directors andthe Auditor

As explained more fully in the Stpages@3aripdithedirbctolBi r ect
are respondile for the preparatiorof the FnancialSatementsand for being satisfiethat they give a true

and fair view. Our responsibility is to auditd express an opinion on the Financiait&nents in accordance

with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK atahlt). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’ s

Scope of the Adit of the Financial &atements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Einaa | Reporting
web-site at www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate

In addition to our audit of theiRancialSatements, thedirectorshave engaged us to review thé&teport on
Corporate ®vernanceas if thecompanywas required to comply with the Listing Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority in relation to those matters. We review whether Beport on Corporate Governance
reflectsthecompany s compl i ance wit h tehCede kpKcifi€ldor quraeviaw by thaSe v e r
rules, and we report if it does not. We are not required by the terms of our engagement to consider whether
the Bo a r Btatamenton Internal Control coves all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of theompany s cor por ate governance procedures or
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Opinion on Financialt&tements
In our opinion:

1 theFinancial &itements give a true and fair view of the state of tBe o u p ' s PagentGo miphaeny ' s
affairs as aB1 March 20Z and oftheGr o uaan & P ar e n tprof forthe gearyhersended;

1 the Financial Gtements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union;

1 the Financial tatements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards tBeoup financial statements, Articleaf the IAS Regulation.

Our Assessment ofhe Risks of Miterial Misstatement

In arriving at our opinions set out in this report, the risks that had the greatest effect on our audit and the key
procedures we applied to address them are set out below. &lposcedures werelesigned in the context of

the RnancialSatements as a whole and, consequently, where we set out findings we do not express any
opinion on these individual risks

RevenueRecognition

1 The risk:Thereis a riskthat revenue ignisstatedas a result of th@ccounting policieadoptedor as
a result of theGroup recognigng income transactions in such a way as to lead to a material
misstatement in the reported revenue

1 Our response:We performed a reconciliation of income recognised as dpaieceived from the
Scottish Government in the financial statements to confirmation from the Scottish Government. The
Group also receives interest in respecttbé working capital loanand subordinated debt invested in
the five hub companieand DBFM SP¥ompaniesandthrough reviewing the underlying agreement
andthe sums investedve confirmed the interest income recognised in the year aesurate

1 Our findings:From the work performed we gained assurance in respect of the completeness and
occurrenceof revenue transactions in the year.

Defined Benefit BnsionScheme

1 The risk:There is a risk that the movement in the defined benefit pension scheme and the closing
pension liability is not recorded and disclosed in Bieancial tatements accurately There is also a
risk that the actuarial assumptions used to determine the pension valuation are not appropriate.

1 Our responseWe reviewed the actuarial assumptions used in the IAS 19 valuation and considered
their appropriateness and ensured that the pesrsiliability was accounted for and disclosed within
the financial statements in accordance with IAS 19.

1 Our findings: The actuarial assumptions are appropriate and the pension liability has been recorded
and disclosed in the financial statements in aceorce with 1AS 19.
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Future funding

1 The risk:SFTrequires funding from the Scottish Government to operatdthout this funding SFT
would notbe able to continue to perate and thus would not be deemed a going concern.

1 Our response We reviewed the funding letter provided by the Scottish Government which confirms
that the Group will receive sufficient funds to operate in 2018. Although, at this time, no funding
letter is in place for 208/19, the Board anticipates continued support from the Scottish Government
in 2018/19 and beyond and thus the Board has prepared Eireancial G&tements on a going concern
basis. Given the relationship that SFT has with the Scdbisternment, the important role SFT plays
in public sector investment and given there is no evidence to the contrary we are satisfied that the
financial statementshould beprepared on a going concern basis.

1 Our findings:The Scottish Government has confed that resources will be provided to SFT to allow
the Group to continue in 20418. The expectabn at the date of signing therancialSatements is
that this funding from the Scottish Government will continue into 28 and beyondand thus the
financial statements have been correctly prepared on a going concern basis

Treatmert of investments made by Scottish Futures Trust Investments Limited

1 The risk:There is a risk thahe Group accounts oScottish Futures Trust Limit¢donsisting of SFT
and SFTi) are incomplete as they may not include all entities that SFTi has invested in which perhaps
may be deemed subsidiaries or associates of SFTi.

1 Our responseWe performed a detailed review of the investments held in order to establish to what
extent, f any, SFTi exerts significant influence or control over the financial and operational decisions
of the investee. This included detailed discussions with Audit Committee and.eadershipream
and a review of underlying agreements.

1 Our findings:The inveiments held by SFTi were reviewed and we concluded that no significant
influence or control existed and therefore consolidation was not requioe@ny of the investments
held.

Potential Impairment of hvestments in SFTi
1 The risk:Capital investments ihub companies and special purpaseestmentvehicles in terms of
both share capital and subordinated debt are impaired.
1 OurresponseFrom our review of investments we did not identify any indication of impairment. The
progress of each project is in liméth expectations.
1 Our findings:No impairment has been identified in respect of any ofiSET i nvest ment s .

Loans from the Scottish Government to SFT which are thedeor to SFTi

1 Therisk:Ther is a risk that loanseceivedby SFTrom the Scottish @vernment which are then on
lent to SFTito fund the investment in subrdinated debt and the share capital @BFM SPV
companiesare not correctly recorded in the financial statemem&SFT or SETi

1 Our responseAll loansreceived from the Scottish Gowenent by SFT in the yeavhich were then
ondentto SFTItof und SFTi's investments were agreed t
statements and both SFTi’'s and SFT's accountin

1 Our findings:From the work performed, we have gained assuraoeer the loangeceived from the
Scottish Government in the year by SFT which were thelemirto SFTi.
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Our Application of Materiality

The materiality for the @up Financial tatements as a whole was set a230,000 This has beeassesséd

with reference to a benchmark of total income (representing 2%hefreported other income and capital
grant incomefigure) andinvestments heldrepresenting 2% of the reptid figure) which we consider to be
two of the principal considerations fahe member of the company in assessing the financial performance of
the Group.

The materiality for theParent Company Financial Statements as a whole was set at £210,000. Tdesrhas
assessed with reference to a benchmark of income received from the Scottish Government (representing 2%
of the reportedfigure).

We set a performance (testing) materiality, which we assessed as being 508 @ferall materiality In
respect of othe areas,we performed audit procedures on all transactions and balances that exceeded our
assessed low risk level performance materiality which was assessed asb#ngjthe overall materiality.

This meant that we performed a greater level of testingtba areas deemed to be of significant rigk
material misstatement. Abalances and transactiorgove 75% of overall materialityere audited whilst for
higherriskitems we tested all balances and transactions abe®%of overall materiality We teged smaller
balances and transactions as we deemed necessary.

We agreed witlthe Audit Committee to report to it the following misstatements that we identified through
our audit: (i) all material corrected misstatements; (ii) uncorrected misstatementsanitiue in excess of
£10500; and (iii) other misstatements below that threshold that we believe warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

An Overview of the Scope of our édit

Each of the risks noted above were identified at the planning stage of ublé and as such procedures
designed to mitigate theisk of material misstatement &re selected at planningn our audit, we tested and
examinedinformation using sampling and other audit techniguesthe extent we considered necessary to
provide a rasonable basis for us ttraw conclusions. We obtained evidence through performing a review of
the significant accounting systems, substantive procedures and detailed analytical procedures.

Opinion on other matters prestbed by the Companies Act 2006
Inour opiniont he part of the Directors’ Remuneration Rep
accordance with the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
1 theinformation giveninthe Strategyi Report and t he efrancial geardor vehich Re p c
the Financial tatements are prepared is consistent with tRinancial &tements;

T the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report
requirements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:

Under the ISAs (UK and Ireland), we r@guired to report to you if, in our opinion, information in the annual
report is:

1 materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or

1 apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowleéithe Group
acquired in the course of performing our audit; or

1 is otherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our
knowledge acquired during the audit and tbe r e cSatemest that they consider the annual report is fair,
balanced and understandable and whether the annual report appropriately discloses those matters that we
communicated to theAudit Committee which we consider should have been disclosed.

In the light of the kowledge and understanding of th@roup and Parent dnpany and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements

T in the Strategic Repoort or the Directors’ Repo
9 the information about internal controlrad risk management systems in relation to financial
reporting processes.

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
1 adequate accounting records have not been kept byRhieent Company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
1 the Parent Company financial statements and the part of tBei r e dRenwnesation Report to be
audited are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
9 certain disclosures dafirectors remuneration specofied by | aw ar
1 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for out.audi

We have nothing to report in respect of the following:
1 theDi r e cSawmest’in relation to going concern: or
1 the part of the Report on Corpate Governance relating to theonpany’' s compl i anc
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.

Nick Bennett (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Scott Moncrieff Chartereficcountants and Statutory Auditor
Exchange Place $emple Street

Edinburgh EFB 8BL

Date:
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Note 2017 2016
£ £
Continuing operations
Revenue - -
Cost of sales - -
Gross profit - -
Other income 5 12,942,239 8,675,870
Capital grant income 6 512,215 1,483270
Operatingexpenditure 7 (10,149,799 (9,712877)
Capital grant expenditure 8 (512,21) (1,483268
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 2,792442 (1,037,005)
Taxation on profibn ordinary activities 9 (183689) (119026
Net profit/(loss) for the year 2,608,753 (1,156,031)
Other comprehensive income:
Those that are not reyclable net of tax:
Actuarial(losse¥/gainson postemployment benefit 17 (1,874,000) 1,630,000
obligations
Other comprehensive income for the year after tax (1,874,000) 1,630,000
Total comprehensive incomfor the year 734,753 473969
SESECRSES SESECESES)
Attributable to:
Equity holder of the company 734,753 473969
SESECRSES SESECESES)
Distributed as follow:
Transferred to retained earnings 734,753 473969
Profits available fordistribution - -
SESECRSRS) SESECRSEC)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 2017 2016
£ £
Continuing operations
Revenue - -
Cost of sales - -
Gross profit - -
Other income 5 12,023,708 8,082,787
Capital grant income 6 512,215 1,483,270
Operatingexpenditure 7 (10,149,708 (9,712,787
Capital grant expenditure 8 (512,25) (1,483,Z0)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 1,874,000 (1,630,000
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities 9 - -
Net profit/(loss) for the year 1,874,000 (1,630,000
Other comprehensive income:
Those thaare not recyclable net of tax:
Actuarial (losses)/gains on pesiployment benefit 17 (1,874,000) 1,630,000
obligations
Other comprehensive income for the year after tax (1,874,000) 1,630,000
Total comprelensive income for the year - -
SESECRSES SESECESES)
Attributable to:
Equity holder of the company - -
SESECRSES SESECESES)
Distributed as follow:
Transferred to retained earnings - -
Profits available for distribution - -
SESKSACKS SESECRCEC)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

41



SCOTTISH FUTURES TRUST OMITE

ANNUAL REPORND GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT 31 MARCH 201

Share Retained Total
As at 31 March 204and 31 March 206 . .
Capital Earnings
£ £ £
At 1 April 2016 2 6,609,386 6,609,388
Total comprehensive income for the year - 734,753 734,753
At 31 Mach 2017 2 7,344,139 7,344,141
SESECRSEC) SESEACRSRS SESECRSES)
Share Retained Total
Capital Earnings
£ £ £
At 1 April 25 2 6,135417 6,135419
Total comprehensive income for the year - 473969 473969
At 31 March 2016 2 6,609,386 6,609,388
SESECESES) SESEASRSES SESECESES)
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHEENE EQUITY AS AT 31 MARCT
Share Retained Total
As at 31 March 204and 31 March 206 . .
Capital Earnings
£ £ £
At 1 April 205 2 - 2
Total comprehensive income for the year - - -
At 31 March 207 2 - 2
SESECRSES) SESESRSES SESECESES)
Share Retained Total
Capital Earnings
£ £ £
At 1 April2015 2 - 2
Total comprehensive income for the year - - -
At 31 March 2016 2 - 2
SESECRSEC) SESEACRSES SESECRSES)

The accompanying noteseaan integral part of these financial statements
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GROURSTATEMENT OF FINAAICPOSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 201

Note 2017 2016
ASSETS £ £
Non-current assets
Investments 11 13,657,793 11,118,667
Property, plant and equipment 10 132,034 220,050
Track and other receivables in more than 1 year 12 1,650,553 968,380
Accrued incomén respect of pension liabilities 16 2,217,000 294,000
17657,380 12,601,097
Current assets
Trade and other receivablés less than 1 year 12 269,592 81,801
Investments 12b 100,000 200,000
Cash and cash equivalents 13 871,178 2,032641
Accrued income 16 95,795 -
1,336,565 2,314,442
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 (1,138057) (970436)
Deferred income 16 (88,016 (1,084021)
Current tax liabilities 9 (183,689 (118598
(1409762 (2,173,055
Net current (liabilities) assets (73,197 141,387
Deferred income 16 (44,018) (208,731)
Pension liabilities 17 (2,217,000) (294,000)
Loan from the Scottish Government 15 (7,9790249 (5,630,365
Net assets 7,344,141 6,609,388
SESECRSES SESECESES)
Equity
Called up share capital 18 2 2
Retained earnings 18 7,344,139 6,609,386
Total shareholde® funds 7,344,141 6,609,388
SESECRSES SESECRSES)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
These filmancial statements were approved by the Boardakctorson 21 August 201and authorised for

issue orits behalf by:

oY

lan Russe]IChairman
Registered Company Number: 88332
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SCOTTISH FUTURES TRUST OMITE
ANNUAL REPORND GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINRNROSITION AS AT 31 MARCH/201

Note 2017 2016
ASSETS £ £
Non-current assets
Investments 11b 1 1
Property, plant and equipment 10 132,034 220,050
Loan tosubsidiary 12a 7,979,024 5,554,737
Accrued incomén respect of pension liabilities 16 2,217000 294,000
10328059 6,068,788
Current assets
Trade and other receivables in less than 1 year 12 516,883 796,984
Cash and cash equivalents 13 525,035 1,535225
Accrued income 16 95,795 -
1,137,713 2,332,209
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 (1,137,712) (1,183,878)
Deferred income 16 (88,016) (1,084,021)
(1,225,728) (2,267,899
Net current(liabilities) assets (88,015) 64,310
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income 16 (44,018) (208,731)
Pension liabilities 17 (2,217,000) (294,000)
Loan from the Scottish Government 15 (7,979,024) (5,630,365)
Net assets 2 2
SESECRCRS) SESECRSEC)
Equity
Called up share capital 18 2 2
Retained eanings 18 - -
Total shareholde® funds 2 2
SESECRCES) SESECRCEC)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
These financial statements were approved by the BoarDiogctorson 21 August 201and authorised for

issue orits behalf by:

Y

lan Russell
Chairman
Registered Company Number: 338382

&1(;/

Barry White

Chief Executive
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GROURSTATEMENT OF CASH FLOWSTHE YEARIDED31 MARCH 201

Note 2017 2016
£ £
Cash flows from operating activitis
Profit/(loss)before taxfrom operations for the
period 2,792442 (1,037,005)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipmer 10 88,016 68,819
IAS19 pension charge 17 49,000 253,000
(Increase)/@crease in trade and other 12 (869,964) 368508
receivables
Increasé(decrease)n trade and other 14 130,299 (360502)
payables
(Increasé/ decreasein net accruedincome 16 (3,179513 876,245
deferred income
Net cash from operating activities (989,720 169,065
SESECRSRS SESECRSEC)
Corporation taxpaid 9 (118,599 (37,269
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 - (112,695)
Purchase of investments 11 (@) 2
Purchase of Share capital in SPVs 11 (450 (243)
Return of workingapital loan 12b 200,000 90,000
Repayment ofubordinated debt 11 3,196 8,939
Loan from Scottish Government 15 2,385981 4,033,640
Provision of working capital loans and
subordinated debt 11 (2,641,871 (3,847,939
(53145) 171,700
SESECRSRS) SESECRSEC)
Net (decrease) increasein cash and cash (1,161,463) 303496
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 13 2,032,641 1,729,145
period
Cash and cash equivalends$ end of period 13 871,178 2,032641
SESECRCES) SESECRCES)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FEOR/SHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201

Note 2017 2016
£ £
Cash flows from operating diwities
Profit/(loss)before taxfrom operations for the period 1,874,000 (1,630,000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10 88,016 68,819
IAS 19 pension charge 17 49,000 253,000
Decrease in trade and other receivables 12 317,423 656,766
Decreasein trade and other payables 14 (83,489 (147,060)
(Decrease)/increasia net accruedncoméedeferred 16 (3,179,513 876,245
income
Net cash from operating activities (934,563 77,770
SESECRSES SESECRSEC)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchasef property, plant and equipment 10 - (112,695)
Loan from Scottish Government 15 2,385,981 4,033,640
Loan tosubsidiary for investment in hub projects 12a (2,461,609 (3,958,012
Net cashused in investingactivities (75,628 (37,067
SESECRSES) SESESESES)
Net (decrease)/ircreasein cash and cash equivalents (1,010,190) 40,703
Cash and ash equivalents at beginning of period 13 1,535,225 1,494522
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 13 525035 1,535225
SESECRSES SESECESES)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TOHEGROUHRINANCIAL STATEMENTOR THE YEAR ENBEMARCH 201
1. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The Group Rancial Satements of Scottish Futures Trust Limited which include Scottish Fuiimest
Investmens Limited have been prepared irceordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), IFRIC Interpretations and the Companies Act
2006.

The FhancialSatements are presented in British Pounds since this is the fomaticurrency of the Group and
Parent Company.

Scottish Futures Trust Limited is a Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in United Kingdom.
The address of its registered office is415 Thistle Street, Edinburgh, EH2 1DF.

The report isprepared on an accruals basis and is based on hiataists and does not take into account
changing money values or, except where specifically stéftadexampledefined benefit pension)current
valuations of norcurrent assets.

Accounting policieare selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying
transactions or other events is reported.

Inter-group transactionsand balances between Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies are
consistent across the Group.

The following significant accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise
stated, have been adopted the preparation of this report:

Going Concern

On the basis of the information available to them, ttieectors have a reasonable expectation that the
Companywill continue to receive funding from thecottish Governmenfhe Company, through its subisid/

SFTi, is also due to receive investment medrom subordinated debt inveted in hub projects for a period

in excess of 20 yearSonsequently, the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Fdhis reason, thalirectorsconsider it appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing weetthe Company controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company. They arendelidated

from the date that control ceases.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cdst. dnly subsidiary is Scottish Futures Trust Investments
Limited.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATENMIERNTMIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH@#itinued)
1. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Classification, ecognition and measurement
The Group classifies its financial assets in the avaifableale and loans and receivables category.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and reeivables are noderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition
Financial assets are glecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the Groupand Parent Compan&atement of CashHows, cash includes cash on haaad deposits with
banks or financial institutions. It alean includecash held on behalf of the Groamd Parent Compartyy its
lawyers.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goodservices that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If m®{, dre presented as necurrent
liabilities. Trade payables are recognised at cost.

AccruedincomeDeferred income

Accruedincomein these financial statementgpresentsgrant incomedue from the Scottish Governmerir
respect of incurred expenditure.Deferred income represents grant income received from the Scottish
Government in advance afcurring expenditure As SFT is a ngmofit making it does not recognise this
income until the associated expenditurerecognised. Deferred income includesapital funding received
which is released over the expected life of fhed assetthe grant funding has been used to purchase.

In addition, Scottish Ministers have underwrittéhF T ' s ajoa in itsipensign scheme. Asuch, any

pension liability ismatched by a commitment from the Scottish Government to fund this liability. This
commitmentis recognised in the financial statemenia accrued income included in nearrent assets.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATENMIENTSE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCHcontinued)
1. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (continued)

Revenue

The Group receives funding from the Scottish Government. The funding that covers the revenue expenditure
of the Group is recognised in other income when the Group isledtto the funding. The funding received
which iseither invested in infrastructure projects distributed to third parties for capital projectsdisclosed

as capital grant income. This is recognised once received.

The Group recognises revenue when tmount of revenue can be reliably measuyeadl performance
conditions have been metnd it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and recé\vaipaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest incomon impaired loasand receivabless recognised using the original effective
rate.

Currenttax (i.e. corporation tax)

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax. Tax is recognised $tatieenent of Comprehensive
Income except to the extenthat it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Property, plant and equipment

A deminimus level for capitalisatin of £5,0002015/16: £1,000)s applied by the GroupEach class of
property, plant and equipment is carried at historical cost kesg accumulated depreciation. Historical
cost includes ependiture that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subseguent costs are included in the asset’s carry
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associatét the item will flow to the Group and the

cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced paresatmised. All other

repairs and maintenance are charged to ®&tement of Comprehensive Incordaering the financial péod

in which they are incurred.

The assets resi dual val ues and usef ul |l i ves ar e

reporting period.

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings and capitalised leased@sdetgeciated on
a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives to@meupcommencingrom the time the asset is held
ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated oveshbeter of either the unexpired period of the
lease or the esinated useful lives of the improvements.

Office equipment over 3 years

Furniture and fixtures over 5 years
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATENMIERNTMIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH@#itinued)
1. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (contirl)e

Derecognition and disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment is-tlecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arisingrenaiition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is incltiaed in
Statement of Comprehensive Incorimethe year the asset is derecognised.

Leases

Leases, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewardsvoership are retained by the lessor, are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to thgtatement of Comprehensive Incorae a straighiline basis over the period tie

lease.

Employee entitlements

Provision is made for the Group’'s liability for
employees in the Statement of Financial Position. Employee entitlements expected to be settled within one
year togeher with entitlements arising from wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave which will be
settled after one year have been measured at their nominal amount. Contributions are made by the Group to
employee pension funds and are charged as expenses \iturred.

Retirement benefits obligations

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme in respect of its employees. The assets of the scheme are held
in external funds managed by professi on-almpldyaev e st 1
Benefits’, the expected costs of providing pensio
using the projected unit credit method, is charged to 8tatement of Comprehensive Incorse as to spread

the cost over the service lives of thercent employees.

A Retirement Benefit Obligation recognised in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present value
of the Defined Benefit Obligation as reduced by the fair value of Scheme Assets. Where the fair value of the
Scheme Assetsxeeeds the present value of the Obligation, the Asset is only recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position where the Group has an unconditional right to a refund or reduction in future contributions.

2. New and amended standards adopted by the Group

No new or amended IFRSs had a material impact on thé/2@%inancial statements.

3. Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been adopted early by the Group

Guidance in Issue but not in ForceEU Endorsed
There is no guidance in issue but not in force which has been EU endorsed which we consider will have a
materialeffect on the financial statements of SFT.

Guidance in Issue but not in Forcenot EU Endorsed
There is no guidance in issue but in force and that has not been EU Endorsed which we consider will have
amaterialeffect on the financial statements of SFT.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATERBNTEFYEAR ENDED 31 MARCH@trifhued)

4. Critical accounting judgements and keywaes of estimation uncertainty

The preparation othe financial statements under IFRS requires the Group to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the application opolicies and reported amountEstimates and judgements are continually
evaluated andare based on historical experience and other factors including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. If in the future should such estimates and
assumptions deviate from actual circumstances, the origgsimates and assumptions would be modified as
appropriate in the year in which circumstances change.

The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within timext financial year are discussed below:

Defined benefit scheme

The Company has a defined benefit scheme for its
recognised at the Statement of Financial Position date has been calculated bag&eg assumptions and
estimates of future events as set out in noté. 1

51



SCOTTISH FUTURES TRUST OMITE

ANNUAL REPORND GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEHNIENTISE YEAR ENBEMARCH 204 (continued)

5. Other income

2017 2016
£ £
Release of Scottish Government funding relating to
Norrcurrent assets 88016 68,819
Scottish Government funding received to compensate fc
expenses incurred 9,596,052 9,094,707
Scottish Government funding received to compdadar
actuarial lossgg¢gains)on employment benefit obligations 1,874,000 (1,630,000)
Secondment charges - 134,251
Management fee due from SFTi 266,258 254,767
Other income 199,382 160,243
Total companyother income 12,023,708 8,082,787
Interest received on working capital loans 1,170,875 811,094
Bank interest 168 182
Other income 13,746 36,574
Management fee due from SFTi (eliminated on
consolidation) (266258) (254,767)
Total group other income 12,942,239 8,675870
SESECRCRS) SESECRSRS)

Under the terms of its Memorandum withe ScottishGovernment, Sattish Futures Trust Limite:
isunable to make a profit. As such the income recognisilin the Comprehensive Statement
Income is adjusted to reflect the impact of timing differences between the receipt of income
related expenditure; for the timing of necash items and for the movement on the pension sche
provision. These adjustemts are on the basis thatc8ttish Futures Trust Limitedis nonprofit-

making and recognisdabat the ScottishGovernment underwrite &ttish Futures Trust Limited :

participation in its pension scheme.

6. Capital Grant Incomeg Groupand Company

Note 2017 2016

£ £

SG capital grant for SFTI investments 11 1 2
SG capital enabling grant for hub projects 8 512214 1,483268
512,215 1,483270
SESESECES) SESESECES

In 2015/16, £1 (2015/16: £2)was receied in grant funding to dnd the investmenby SFTof £1

(2015/16: £2)n LLPs.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEHMENTSE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH@ntinued)

7. OperatingExpenditure

2017 2016
£ £
Profit before taxation is stated after charging:

Non-executive fes 31350 31267
Chair expenses for secretarial and administrative support 5,053 6,738
Salaries and associated costs 7,309,722 7,027,568
Agencyseconded &interim staff 621,497 710,843
Auditor's remuneration - SFT audit fee 12,225 12513
- SFTaudit fee 5,000 5,000

- taxation services 1,550 2,000

- other services 5,400 3,900

Operating leases in respect of land and buildings 108278 108,175
Depreciation 88,016 68,819
Corporate Professional fees 13414 9,880
Recruitment fees 55,534 56,497
Advisory fees 629,694 325278
Grants made 148,733 387,981
Hub PDO Fees 76,736 55,392
Otheroperatingcosts 1,037,506 900,936
Companyoperatingexpenditure 10,149,708 9,712787
SFToperatingexpenditure 90 90
Groupoperatingexpenditure 10,149,798 9,712877
SESESECKS SESESECKS)

Theaveragenumber offull time equivalent employees employed in the year wa$2015/ 16: 69) broken

down as8 (2015/16: 7) Leadership Teanb0 (2015/ 16: 49) programme delivery and3(2015/16: 13)

businessupport

2017 2016

£ £

Wages and salaries 5524771 5,060492
National Insurance 670901 552501
Pension cost@including IAS 18harge) 1,114,050 1414575
7,309,722 7,027,568
00000 00000

Included in pensiorosts is £49,000 (2016: £253,000) in respect of the IAS 19 pension movgiotent7).
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENHE FERRTENDED 31 MARCH gtiiritinued)

8. Captal Grant Expenditure

2017 2016

£ £

GroupCapital enabling grant for hub projects 512,214 1,483268
Capital grant for SFTi investments in LLPs 1 2
Company capital grant expenditure 512,256 1,483270
SESECRCES) SESECRSES)

9. Taxation

2017 2016

Group £ £
Under provision in prior year 428
Corporation tax charge @ 20% 183,689 118,598
183,689 119,026

SESESECAS) SESESECAS)

Corporation tax creditor at year end 183,689 118,598
SESECECAS) SESECECAS)

The corporation taxharge is in respect of the surplus generated as a result of the interest on working

capital loans and subrdinated debt exceeding theperating cost®f Scottish Futures Trust Investments
Limited.

Company

No taxable profit was generated by Scottishufes Trust Limited and thus no corporation tax was due.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATENIIRNTIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH@fttinued)

10. Property, plant and equipment, Group and Company

Office Furniture &
equipment fixtures Total
£ £ £
Cost
At 31 March 2016 322004 197,166 519,170
Additions - -
At 31 March 201 322004 197,166 519170
SESECRSES) SESECRCES) SESECRCES)
Depreciation
At 31 March 2016 190957 108,163 299,120
Charge for the yar 56,530 31,486 88,016
At 31 March 20T 247,487 139,649 387,136
SESECRSEC) SESECRCRS SESECRCRS
Net book value
At 31 March 201 74517 57,517 132,034
SESECRCEC) SESECRCRS SESECRCRS
At 31 March 20@& 131,047 89,003 220,050
SESESTSIS] SESECRSES SESECESES
11. Investments; Group
hub Co& hub Co Subordinated
NHT LLF working debt Total
share capital capital (note 10a)
£ £ £ £
Cost and Net book value
At 31 March 2016 332 200,000 10,918335 11,118667
Additions 451 - 2,641,91 2,642,322
Principal repaid in the year - - (3,196) (3,196)
Transferred to current assets
(note 12b) - (100,000) - (100,000)
At 31 March 201 783 100,000 13,557,010 13,657,793
SESECRSEC) SESECRSEC) SESECRCRS) SESECRCES)

Share capital

SFTi investedlfin onehousing partnership LLP during the current yiegyether with £150in share capital of

SPVs in connection with sub debt investments.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATENMIENTSE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH@#itinued)
11. Investments; Group (continued)

Share capitahvestments cannot be classifi@gdany other category of financial asset. There is no intention to
disposeof any of these investments.

Hub Co Working &pital

Working Capital Loang non-current assets

SFTi loaned working capital of £100,000 to hub West Scotland Limited on 27 ApriT Bi$l®orking capital
facility wasavailable until 26 April 201But has been extended to 31 December 2@@iB8which date the full
amount of the working capital &lity shall be due and payable on demand unless a renewal or extension is
agreed. The rate of interest applicable shall be: the interest (net of tax) received where amounts are held in
the reserve account, and 6.5% p.a. on all other sums. Int&sestyeble semiannually (on 31 December and

30 June).This item has been treated as a romrrent asset at 31 March 2017.

Working capital loans current assets

SFTi loaned working capital of £100,000 to hub South West Scotland Limited on 17 Novembd&rhB012.
working capital facility is available until 16 November 2017 by which date the full amount of the working
capital facility shall be due and payable on demand unless a renewal or extension is agreed. The rate of
interest applicable shall be: the intergstet of tax) received where amounts are held in the reserve account,
and 6% p.a. on all other sums. Interesgpayable semannually (on 31 December and 30 JunEis item has

been treated as a current asset at 31 March 2017.

Working capital loans repaid

SFTi loaned working capital of £100,000 to hub South East Scotland Limited on 30 JulshBOMdrking
capital facility was originally available until 30 July 2015 but was extended until 31 MarclvBéat was
repaid It was treated as a currerdssetat the 2016yearend.

SFTiloaned working capital of £100,000 to hub East Central Scotland Limited on 7 Februdrgi@®idking
capital facilitywasavailable until 6 February 2057 which time it was repaidit was treated as a current asset
at the 2016yearend.

SFTiloaned working capital of £90,000 to hub North Scotland Limited on 28 Januarjt#2€Working capital
facility was repaid in February 281t was treated as a current asset in the yeaded 31 March 2015

Working capitaloans are held as financial asset®ans and receivables.

Capital Management

TheScottish Governmergrants SFTunds which SFT graswn to SFTi for investment in subordinated debts,

share capital in special purpose vehicksl working capital in hubdS. TheScottish Government also loans

SFT funds which SFT loans on to SFTi for investment in subordinated debts, share capital in special purpose
vehicles and working capital in hub Cos. These investments are detailed inlaote 1
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NOTES TO THE GROWARCIAL STATEMENTER THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH@#ttinued)
1la. Financial assetg Subordinated debt (Group)
During 2086/17, SFTi inv&ted £2,641,871as subordinated dehwithin the following hub projects:

1 Lothian Bundle for NHS Lothiéotal @pital cost: 26m) - £243750invested

1 Largs Academfpr North Ayrshire Council (Total capital cost: £44£391,130 invested

1 New Academy (South of the City) for Aberdeen City Council (Total capital cost: £8321),672
invested

East Lothian Communityeldlth Centre for NHS Lothian (Total capital cost: £653690,797 invested
Inverurie & Forresterhill Health Centres for NHS Grampian (Total capital cost: £AI6Y,168
invested

9 Stirling Care Village for NHS Forth Valley (Total capital cost: £88%),500 invested

T West Calder High School for West Lothian Council (Total capital cost: £80&®),654 invested

1 Pharmaceutical Special Services for NHS Tayside (Total capitdR5m) - £276,200invested

f
f

Further detail s on Sdnateddebt ohub prejects incuding detaits oftthie pripes u b o r

invested, the coupon and the redemption @atcan be found in the tableglow byeachhubco.
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. . £576,191 less £1,759
AberdeenCommunity Health Fixed coupon o .
Village Ltd unsecured loans principal repaid totals 10.2% 2039
9 £574,432
Fixed coupon £133,884 less £7,180
hub North Scotland (FWT) Ltd P principal repaid totals 10.2% 2039
unsecured loans
£126,704
Fixed
hub Noth Scotland (Alford) Ltd | o0 coUPOn £747,036 10.2% 2040
unsecured loans
) Fixed
hub North Scotland (Wick) Ltd | o0 coUPon £1,568,509 10.2% 2042
unsecured loans
hub North Scotland (And Fixed
ub North Scotland (Anderson) | Fixed coupon £342.962 10.2% 2043
Ltd unsecured loans
hub North Scotind (Elgin High | Fixed
ub North Sco#ind (Elgin Hig ixed coupon £253,654 10.2% 2043
Schal) Ltd unsecured loans
hub North Scotland Fixed coupon
£491,691 10.2% 2043
(©0&C)Lud unsecured loans °
hub North Scotland (New Fixed coupon
. £321,672 10.2% 2043
Academy South of the City) unsecured loans 0
Fixed
hub North Scotland (1 & F) Ltd | o0 couPon £167,168 10.2% 2044
unsecured loans
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATENIRNTISE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH@fttinued)

1la Financial assetg Subordinated dét (Group)

James

Gill espi

Subhub Holdings Ltd

Fixed coupon
unsecured loans

£1,252,424

10.87%

2041

Ltd

REH Phase 1 Subhub Holding

An advance

£410,685

2.48% during
construction
and 10.75%
during
operation

2042

Newbattle DBFM Holdco Ltd

Fixed coupon
unsecured loans

£310,265

3.35% during
construction
and 10.5%
during
operation

2043

KHS DBFM Holdco Ltd

Fixed coupon
unsecured loans

£205,150

3.35% during
construction
and 10.5%
during
operation

2042

LBP DBFM Holdco Ltd

Fixed coupon
unsecured loans

£243,750

3.37% during
construction
and 1045%
during
operation

2042

ELCH DBFM Holdco Ltd

Fixed coupon
unsecured loans

£600,797

2.98% during
construction
and1045%
during
operation

2044

WCHS DBFM Holdco Ltd

Fixed coupon
unsecured loans

£286,654
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3.47% during
construction
and 1045%
during
operation
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARARIHERO17 (continued)

1la. Financial assetsSubordinated debt (Group) (continued)

Fixed coupon

£325,055ess 2,134

Company (No.4) Ltd

al
©

unsecured loan

Hub SW NHSL Holdco Ltd unsecured loans principal repaid totals 10.5% 2040
£322,921
2.33% during
Hub SW Greenfaulds Holdco| An advance construction and
£271,509 ) 2041

Ltd 10.5% during

operation
5 -
Fixed coupon ié?i(:uiltjizﬁgand

Hub SW Ayr Holdco Ltd unsecured loans £490,168 10.6%6 during 2042

operation
5 -

Hub SW Dalbeattie Holdco Lt| unsecured loans £209,081 . 2042
10.85% during
operation

. -

Hub SW EALC Holdco Ltd unsecured loans £368,416 ) 2043
10.5% duing
operation
3.41% duri

Fixed coupon const(;ucliir(;:gand
Hub SW Largs Holdco Ltd nsecured loans £391,130 . 2043
. 9 . ! 10.15% during
operation

Hub Fied coupon £186,042ess £1,062

West Scdand Project unsecureg loan principal repaid totals 9.75% 2041

Company (No.1) Ltd £184,980

Hub Fixed coupon

West Scdand Project P £70,413 9.75% 2042

unsecured loan

Company (No.2) Lt

Hub Fixed coupon

West Scdand Project unsecure dploan £213,748 9.75% 2042

Company (No.3) Ltd

Hub Fixed coupon

West Sctdand Project P £228,401 9.75% 2042
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1la. Financibassets; Subordinated debt (Group) (continued)

e MR e R R

Hub East Central Fixed coupon unsecured £1.608,000 10.2% 2041
(Levenmouth) Ltd loans

Hub East Centt&cotlan Fixed coupon £209.790 10% 2042
(Baldragon) Lt unsecured loans

Fixed coupon

Hub East Central (ForfarfdL £364,200 10% 2041
unsecured loans
Fixed coupon

Hub East Central (SCV) Ltd P £354,500 10% 2044
unsecured loans
Fixed coupa

Hub East Central (PSS) Ltd b £276,200 10% 2043

unsecured loans

The most significant risk to th@roupis investment performance. Two projects are being monitored closely
where operational perfanance has led senior funders to require delay in subordinated debt payment. The
Board do not anticipate any losses as payements are anticipated to be received in all cases and hence with the
exception of minor reprofiling, investments are performing acdimg to their base cases and making returns

as anticipated.

11b. Investmentsn subsidiary¢ Company

Investment in Subsidiary

£
Cost and Net book value
At 31 March 20& and 31 March 201 1
SESESECKES)
The Company’s investment is in the share capital
registered in Scotland.
Nature of business To hold investments in infrastructure companies, assets and
projects across Scotland
Class of shares Ordinary 2017 2016
Holding 100% £ £
Aggregate capital and reserve: 7,344,140 6,609,387
Profit for the year 734,753 473,969
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12. Trade and other receivables

Group Company Group Company
2017 2017 2016 2016
£ £ £ £
Due in more than 1 year
Accrued interest income from sub
ordinated debt investments 1,650,553 - 968,380 -
SESECRSES) SESECRSES) SESECRCRS) SESECRCES)
Due in less than 1 year
Other receivables 68,557 68,557 39,996 39,996
Prepayments and accrueaterest
income 201,035 39,979 41,805 35,554
Amounts due from subsidiary
SFTi - 371,025 - 721,434
Loan due fromgbsidiary- SFTi - 37,322 - -
269,592 516,883 81,801 796,984
SESECRSEC) SESECRSEC) SESECRSES SESECRSES
12a. Loan tosubsidiary
Company Company
2017 2016
£ £
At beginning of the year 5,554,737 1,596,725
Increase irperiod 2,655,131 3,958012
Repaid in the year (193522 -
At 31 March 2017 8,016,346 5,654,737
SESESECAS) SESEKSECAS)

SFT made a loan 02,655,131 (2016: £3,958012) to SFTi during the yeaf2,641,871(2016: £3,847,939) was
used toinvest in subordinated debt in the yeaiThe loan is nofinterest bearing and repayable between
September 207 and March 204.
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12a. Loan tosubsidiary(continued)

This is expected to be repaid:

2017 2016
£ £
< 1lyear 37,322 -
1-2 years 123,717 2,250
2-5 Years 555,527 559,909
>5 years 7,299,780 4,992578
At 31 March 207 8,016,346 5,554,737
SESESk<kS) SESkSk<kKS)
Disclosed as
Current assets 37,322 -
Noncurrent assets 7,979,024 5,554,73
8,016,346 5,554,737
SESASESES) SEASESESKS)
12b. Investments- Group
2017 2016
Working Capital Loans £ £
Cost and Net book value
At 1 April2016 200,000 90,000
Repaid in current year (200,000) (90,000)
Transferredrom non-current
assets (note 1) 100,000 200,000
At 31 March 207 100,000 200,000
SESESASES] SASESEASES]
13. Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company Group Company
2017 2017 2016 2016
£ £ £ £
Cash abank 870,874 524731 1,776,414 1,278998
Cash on deposit held by lawyer - - 256,000 256,000
Cash on hand 304 304 227 227
871,178 525,035 2,032,641 1,535,225
ISESESESES! ISESESESES] SESESESES] ISESESESES]
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14. Trade and other payables

Group Company Group Company
2017 2017 2016 2016
£ £ £ £
Other payables (operational
expenditure) 368,937 368,937 257,303 257,303
Other taxes and social security 214,391 214,075 194,851 194,544
Other creditors and accruals 517,407 517,378 518,282 518,253
Amountspayable tosubsidiary-
SFT - - - 213,778
Loan from the Scottish
Government(note 15) 37,322 37,322 - -
1,138057 1,137,712 970,436 1,183878
SESECRSEC) SESECRCEC) SESECRCRS SESECRCRS
15. Loan from the Scottish Government
Group Company Group Company
2017 2017 2016 2016
£ £ £ £
At beginning of the year 5,630,365 5,630,365 1,596,75 1,596,725
Increase in the period 2,385,981 2,385,981 4,033,640 4,033,640
As at 31 March 2017 8,016,346 8,016,346 5,630,365 5,630,365
SESECRSES) SESECRSES) SESESRSES SESESESES
Theloan is norinterest bearing andapayable between Septemb@017and March2044
This is expected to bepaidin:
2017 2016
£ £
<1 year 37,322 -
1-2 years 123,717 2,250
2-5 Years 555,527 559909
>5 years 7,299,780 5,068,206
At 31 March 207 8,016,346 5,630,365
SESEXSECAS) SESEKSECRS)
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15. Loan from the Scottish Government (continued)

2017 2016
£ £
Disclosed as
Current assets 37,322 -
Non-current assets 7,979,02 5,630,365
8,016,346 5,630,365
SESESESKS) SESESESKS)

16. Accruedincoméedeferred incomeg Group and Company

Accruedincoméddeferred incomerelates to funding received from Scotti$hbovernmentin an accounting
period which is not matched witthe correspondingexpenditurewithin the FinancialStaements. As SFT is
non-profit making such income is recognisedaxsruedincomeif costs exceeds the funding provided or
deferred income when fundinig received in advance of costs being incurrBéferred income balances also
include funding received to purchase fixed assétsluded in accrued income greater than one year is funding
that will bedrawdownin the future from theScottishGovernment to meet the pension liability as the Scottish
Governme n t has wunder wr i tt ¢he persiBnTschemepha Adcrued/defeadd iinoome i n

balances comprise:

2017 2016
£ £
Non-current asset
Accrued income in respect of the pension liability
underwritten by the Scottish Government 2,217000 294,000
SESECECKS ) SESEKSECAS)
Current asset
Accrued income due from the Scottish Governmen
relating to costs incurred 95,795 -
SESECRCRS) SESESECAS)
Current liability
Deferred income arising as a result of receiving
funding from the Scottish Government idhaance of
costs being incurred. - (1,072,702)
Deferred income arising on capital funding recei\
which isreleased over the expected life of thixdd (88,016) (11,319)
asset funded in less than eyear
(88,016) (1,084021)
SESESECAS) SESESECAS)
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16. Accrued income/deferred income Group and Compangcontinued)

2017 2016
£ £
Non-current liability
Deferred income arising on capifainding received
which isreleased over the expected life of the fixet (44,018) (208,732
asset funded in more than one year.
SASESECAS) SASESECAS)
The movement on the deferred funding relating to the funding of fixed assets is:
2017 2016
Fixed assetleferred income £ £
As at beginning of period (220,050) (176,174)
Increase in the period - (112,695)
Released to statement of income and retained earning 88,016 68,819
As at period end (132,034) (220,050)
SESEKSECAS) SEASESECAS)
Sgit
Current liabilities (88,016) (11,319)
Non-current liabilities (44,018) (208,731)
(132,034) (220,050)
SESEKSECAS) SESKSECAS)

In the 2015/16 financial statements, the accrued income of £294,000 due from the Scottish Goveimmen
respect of the pension liability which the Scottish Government has underwritten was netted off within
deferred income. In the restated figures this has been shown in accrued income greater than one year. Thus,
deferred income within current liabilgs in 2015/16 has been grossed up by £294,000. This adjustment did
not i mpact SFT's previously stated | oss or net as.
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17. Retirement benefits obligatiorg Group and Company

The Company is an admitted body of the Lothian Pension Fund. The Superannuation Fund is a defined benefit
scheme into which employees’ and employer’s contr
are paid and fronwhich pensns, lump sums and superannuation benefits are paid @gntributions to the

scheme are charged to ti&tatement of Comprehensive Incons®, as to spread the cost of pensions over the
empl oyees’ working | ives wit h rirdeebya qualified aciuaryonthéh e ¢
basis of triennial valuations using the projected unit method. Liabilities are valued on an actuarial basis using
the projected unit method, which assesghe future liabilities of the fund discounted to their presarglue.

The most recent formal triennial valuation of the fund was at 31 March420) Hymans &bertson,
independent actuaries.

The group financial statements include the results of the IAS 19 valuation carried out, by Hymans Robertson,
as at 31 Marcl2017 which projects forward the results of the 20friennial valuation and adjusts for changes

in assumptionsS F TCordributions due to the Scheme will be funded by the drawdafvgrantfrom the
Scottish GovernmeniThe assumptions used in this analysis @etermined by Lothian Pension Fund on the
advice of Lothian Pension Fund Actuaries, Hymans Robertsking into account the requirements of
accounting standards.

Each employeés allocated to a duration category, as defined below:

Weighted average dration Discount rate category
Less than 17 years Short
Between 17 and 23 years Medium
More than 23 years Long

As at 31 Marcl2017,therewere only activeand deferredmembers there were no pensioner member§he
defined benefit obligation haa duration of 25.1(2016: 25.1) yearsand thus, a long rate discount rate has
been appliedThe main assumptionssedare:

31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016

% p.a. % p.a.
Inflation / Pension Increase Rate 24% 2.2%
Salary Increase Rate 4.4% 4.2%
Discount Rate 2.7% 3.6%

Mortality

Life expectancy is based on tkends Vita Curvg with improvementsin line with the CMI 2012 model
assuming current rates of improvement have peaked and will converge to a long term rate of 1.25% per
annum Based on these assumptionBetaverage future life expectancies at age 65 are summarised below:

Males Females
Current pensioners 22.1years 23.7 years
Future pensioners 24.2 years 26.3 years
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17. Retirement benefits obligatiorg Group and Company (continued)

Assets (Employer)

31 March 2017

Assets
£000
Equities 8,619
Bonds Debt securities and Funds 3,040
Property 8388
Cash 610
Total Market Value of Assets 13,157
Present Value of Scheme of Liabilities 15,374
Net Pension Liability (2,217)
ISESEKSESES
31 March 2086
Assets
£000
Equities 5,798
Bonds Debt securities and Funds 2,201
Property 803
Cash 580
Total Market Vale of Assets 9,382
Present Value of Scheme of Liabilities 9,676
Net PensiorLiability (2949
SEkSESRSkS)
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17. Retirement benefits obligatiorg Group and Company (continued)

Recognition in the Income Statement:

31 March 20% 31 March 2086

£(000) % of Pay £(000) % of Pay
Current service cost (2,101 24.1% (1,359 (29.7%
Net interest income 11 0.2% (58) (1.3%
Contributions paid in year péAS
19 valuation 1,063 23.3% 1,164 25.4%
Total (charge)/income included
in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income (49) 1% (253) (5.5%)

The IAS 19 pension charge @ab) is included within salaries and associated costs in hofethe financial
statements. The actual pension contribution of the company paid as part of the payrolllvéé$,8050(2016:
£1,161,575). This included an additional contribution £450,000(2016: £250,00Q made in the yearThe
empl oyer’s contribution rate is 20% and the empl o

Analysis of the amountecognisedn other comprehensive income

31 March 31 March
2017 2016
£(000) £(000)
Actud return less expected return on pension scheme assets 1,917 133
Changes in financial assumptions underlying the present valt (3,791) 1,497
scheme liabilities
Actuarial(losg/gain (1,874) 1,630
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17. Retirement benefits obligatiorg Group and Company (continued)

Recognition of defined benefit obligations:

Year Ended 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2017 2016 2015 2014
£(000) £(000) £(000) £(000)
Opening Defined Benefit 9,676 9,046 4,083 2,618
Obligations
Current Service Cost 1,101 1,359 1,057 694
Interest Cost 375 328 206 140
Contributions by Members 447 453 387 319
ActuarialLosseg (Gains) 3,791 (1,497) 3,318 320
Past Serice Costs/(Gains) - - - -
Estimated benefits paid (16) (13) (10 3)
Closing Defined Benefit
Obligations 15374 9,676 9,046 4,088

Reconciliation of &ir value of employer assets:

vYear Ended 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2015 2014
£(000) £(000) £(000) £(000)
Opening Fair Value of Employer 9,382 7,375 3,941 2,816
Assets
Expected Return On Assets 364 270 201 147
Contributions by Memeérs 447 453 387 319
Contribution by Employer 1,063 1,164 1,100 613
Actuarial Gains/ (Losses) 1,917 133 1,756 49
Estimated Benefits Paid (16) (13) (10 (3)
Closing Fair Value of Employer
Assets 13,157 9,382 7,375 3,941
Closing(Liability) (2,217) (299 (1,677 (247)
SESECR SESECR SESECR SESECR
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17. Retirement bendits obligation ¢ Group and Company (continued)

Projected IAS 19 charge to be charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31
March 20B:

31 March 2018

£(000) % of pay
Projected Current Service Cost (1,595 (34.91%
Interest an Obligation (442 (9.9
Intereston Plan Assets 373 8.2%
(1,664
Esti mated Employer’s contr.i 8N
march208 ————
(770
SESECRCRS

Sensitivity analysis:

Approximate %  Approximate

e increase to monetary
Sensitivities at 31 March 201 Employer amount (£000)
Obligation
0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 14% 2,115
0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 5% 810
0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 8% 1,238
18. Share capital andetained earnings; Group and Company
Group & Group &
Company Company
2017 2016
£ £
Share capital
Authorised,issued and fully paid ordinary sharesf £1
each
As at beginning of period 2 2
Issued in the period - -
As atperiod end 2 2
SESECASRS SESECRSEC)
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18. Share capital and retained earningsGroup andCompany(continued)

The shares have attached to them full voting and capitatitigion (including on winding up) rights. The
shares do not confer any rights of redemption and do not confer any rights to a dividend.

Theretained earnings reserve comprises the cumulative profits of the group.
19. Related party transactions
Scottih Ministers

The Company is wholly owned by Scottish Ministers. Details of transactions with the S
Government are included below.

2017 2016
£ £

Scottish Government Funding received
Revenue government fundirgashreceived 8,502,785 8,107233
Capital grant income 512215 1483270
9,015,000 9,590,503

SASESACAS) SESESACRS

2017 2016
£ £

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Capital grant income funding incomeeleased in period 88,016 68,819
Revenue government funaly recognised 11,470,052 7,464,707
Capital grant income 512215 1,483270

SESESACKS SEASESRSAS)

Scottish Government funding is recognised within the Statement of Comprehensive Ihcameatch the
corresponding expenditure. Further details are provided ireriat
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19. Related party transactiongcontinued)

The figures above are reflected in the financial statements as follows:

2017 2016
£ £

Statement of Financial Psition
Accrued income in respect tfe pension liability 2,217,000 294,000
Deferred income-funding received in advance of costs incurred (36,239) (1,292752
Loan from the Scottish Government 8,016,346 5,630,365

SESESRCRS) SESECRCRS)

Noble Grossart imited

Sir Angus Grossart, thetired chairman of the Scottish Futures Trust Limited, is an ultimate controlling
shareholder of Noble Grossart Limited.

2017 2016
£ £

Income Statement
Expense for secretarial and administrative support 4,292 6,738
SESESECAS) SESESECAS)

Statement of Financial Position
Balance included in other creditors and accruals - 6,738
SESESESES) SESESESKS)

Remuneration in respect of thdirectorswas as follows:

2017 2016
£ £
ExecutivedirectorsQ SY 2t dzySy i a

Emoluments 368,327 361,511
Pension costs 69,525 68,162
437,852 429,673
SESESESKS ) SESESESES)

Non-executivedirectorsQ FSS & 31,200 31,200
SESESESKS) SESESESES)
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19. Related party transactions (continued)

Hub South Easterritory

SFTi holds 10% of the share capitahatd South East Scotland Limited and the various speci
purpose project companies within this territory which are detailed in ridda

A SenioAssociateDirector of SFT, is a NaxecutiveDirector of hub South East Scotlanchited

and the various special purpose project camjgsbut does not have a financial interestany
of them. Details of material transactions withese joint venturesre included below:

2017 2016
£ £
Statement of Financial Position
Currentassets- Investments (wrking capital loans - 100,000
Financial assetssubordinated debt 3,309,725 2,178524
Trade and other receivablesaccrued interest income 583,314 352,250
Trade and other receivableshub director fees 1,894 1,845
Income statement
Other income-hub director fees 3,156 6,075
Other income- Interest income 234,815 173,208
Capital grant expenditure 122,413 37,968

SESESACRS SASESACAS)

Hub Noth ScotlandTerritory

SFTi holds 10% of the share capitdiud North Scotland Limited and the various special purp:
project companies within this territory which are detailed in ndéa

A Senior AsociateDirector of SFT, isldon-executiveDirector of hub North Scotlandmited and
the variousspecial purpose project companibsit does not have a financial interestamy of
them. Details of material transactions withese joint venturesre included below:

2017 2016
£ £
Statement of Finacial Position
Financial assetssubordinated debt 4 593828 4,104,988
Trade and other receivablesaccrued interest income 933159 470,019
Income statement
Other income- Interest income 508,180 379910
Capital gant expenditure - 8,824

SESESESS S/ SESESRSRS)
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19. Related party transactions (continued)

Hub East Central Scotlarikrritory

SFTi holds 10% of the share capitahuath East CentraBcotland Limited ahthe various specis
purpose project companies within this territory which are detailed in ridda

A Senior AsociateDirector of SFTjs a Non-Executive Director of hub East Central Scott
Limited and the various special purpose project compabigsloes nothave a financial interes
in any of them Details of material transactions withese joint venturesre included below:

2017 2016
£ £
Statement of Financial Position
Financial assetsworking capital loans - 100,000
Financial as4e—subordinated debt 2,902,690 2,271,990
Trade and other receivablesaccrued interest income - 1,688
Income statement
Other income-interest income 247535 166,164
Capital grant expenditure - 44,938

SASESACAS) SASESACAS)

Hub West Scotland erritory

SFTi holds 10% of the share capitahalb West Scotland Limited and the various special purpt
project companies within this territory which are detailed in ndta

A Senior AsociateDirector of SFTis aNon-ExecutiveDirector of hub West Scotlandrhited and the
various special purpose project compantag does not have a financial interest amy of them

Details of material transactions withese joint venturesre included below:

2017 2016
£ £
Statement of Financial Position
Financial assetsworking capital loans 100,000 100,000
Financial assetssubordinated debt 697,542 698,604
Trade and other receivablesaccrued interest income 111,110 43914
Trade and other payables - 7,410
Income statement
Other income-interest income 79,309 19,041
Capital grant expenditure 389,801 414,302

SASESECHES) SASECRCRS)
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19. Related party transactions (continued)

Hub South West Scotlanderritory

SFTi holds 10% of the share capitahalh South WesScotland Limited and the various special purps
project companies within this territory which are detailed in ndta

A Senior AssociateDirector of SFT, is a Ndfxecutive Dector of hub South West Scotland Limitadd
the various special purpose project companies but does not have a financial interest in any of
Details of material transactions withese joint ventuesare included below:

2017 2016
£ £

Statement of Financial Position
Financial assetsworking capital loans 100,000 100,000
Financial assetsubordinated debt 2,053,225 1,664229
Trade and other receivablesaccrued interest income 182,132 104,914
Trade and other payable - -
Income statement
Other income-hub drector fees 10,590 30,500
Other income-interest income 101,036 54,771
Capital grant expenditure - 977,236

SASESACAS) SASESACAS)

LAR Housing Trust

LAR Housing Trust was incorgied as a ScottisG@haritablel ncor por at ed Or g &hApslat i or
2014to assist in the provision of affordable housing. SFTi has the right to appoint a Partner Trustee to the
organisation who is one of six Trusteefur being Independent Tstees and one an Executive Trust€he

Chief Executve f SFT i s currently SFTi’s nominated Truste
Trust are noted below:

2017 2016
£ £
Statement of Financial Position - -
Income statement-secordment of staff - 74,455
00000 SESESESES)
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19. Related party transactions (continued)

Hub Community Foundation

The Hub Community Foundation was incorporated as #iStt@Chariable Incorporated Organisatign SC1 O )
on 10 December 201t assist in the delivery of community benefits through the hub programme and to
provide finance to specific projects delivered by the hub programme. SFTi has the right to appainea Pa
Trustee to the organisation who is one of five Trustedlsree being Independent Trustees and one Trustee
representing the Private Sector Development Partnér&enior Associate Directorof SF§ current | y
nominated Trustee. Details of matal transactions with Hub Communifjoundationare noted below:

2017 2016
£ £
Statement of Financial Position - -
Income statement - -
0095991 000991

20. Commitments under operating leasesGroup and Company
At 31 March 20Z, the Company ha outstanding total commitments for future minimum lease payments
under noncancellable operating leases as follows:

2017 2016
£ £

Office Premisegrent and service charges)
Due less than one year 110,400 110,400
Due in more than one year and lagban five years 257,600 331,200
Due in more than five years - 36,800
368,000 478,400

SASECRCRS) SASESECHRS)

21. Financial Instruments

The Group’'s financi al instruments compredraioms andd c as
loans from the Scottish Government, subordinated debt issued to hub companies and working capital loans
made to hub companiesThe Group has not entered into derivatives transactions. Each of the main risk
exposures related to financial instents are considered below.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no borrowingabject to interesbr significant amounts of cash on depesdr significant
periods of time,it has no significant exposure to interest rate riskerest rates in respeatf subordinated
debt investment and working capital loans are fixed.

Credit Risk

The Group does not have a significant concentration of credit risk. Bank deposits are held with major national
banks and the principal customer is the Scottish Government.
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21. Financial Instrumenté&ontinued)

Liquidity Risk
The Group operates within a budget agreed with the Scottish Government and as such liquidity is not seen as
a mgor risk area.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The Group recognises financial assets and liabilities at fair value where appropriate. No revaluation has arisen
during the period.

22. Ultimate Controlling Party
The Company is whottywned by the Scottish Ministers.

23. Contingent asset

The Company became an admitted body of the Lothian Pension Fund on 1 May 2009. A Deed of Guarantee
and Indemnity exists with Scottish Ministers whereby any default by the Coyrgfanonies owed to the Fund
will be met by Scottish Ministers.
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OFFICERS AND PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS

Directors

lan Russel{Chairman}-appointed 1 January 2017

Sir Angus GrossafChairman}-resigned 31 December 2016
Graeme Bisset{Nonexecutive Director)

James FletchefNon-execuive Director)

Fiona Mackenzi¢Non-executive Director)

Carolyn DwyelNon-executive Director)

Ann Fauld{Nonexecutive Director}-appointed 1 April 2017
Graham Watsor(Nonexecutive Director}-appointed 1 April 2017
Barry White(Chief Executive)

Peter Reekie (Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Investments)

Chief Executive
Barry White

Registered Office & Principal Place of Business
11-15 Thistle Street

Edinburgh

EH2 1DF

Registered Company Nnber
SC348382

Auditor
ScottMoncrieff
Exchange Place 3
Semple Street
Edinburgh

EH3 8BL

Bankers

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc
36 St Andrews Square
Edinburgh

EH2 2YB

Website
www.scottishfuturestrust.org.uk
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